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Corporate Profile

NGl VAN

SCUD Group Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 1399) is a leading manufacturer of
rechargeable battery packs for mobile phones and compatible rechargeable
battery packs for notebook computers, digital cameras and other portable
electronic devices in the PRC.

The principal operating business of the Group includes the Group’s own
“SCUD 7RFEMBR " brand and “Chaolitong #7738 " brand as well as original
equipment manufacturing (OEM) business. As at 31 December 2008, the
Group’s products comprised 3,000 models of rechargeable mobile phone
battery packs which are compatible with approximately 3,300 mobile phone
models, with annual output amounting to 75 million packs. During the year,
the number of first tier distributors of the Group has exceeded 570, of which
200 are exclusive distributors, with over 49,000 points of sales.

The Group has been focusing on business expansion over the years. In the
Group’s own brand business, “SCUD FRFERR " is popular among customers
in the PRC. Four major product series of the brand, namely “Business
Series S Z 5", “Gold Series € gh & %", “Standard Series {22 X 51|
and “Economy Series #§ % Z 7I]”, were launched to cater for the needs
of different groups of consumers. Upon completion of the acquisition of
the principal operating assets of “Chaolitong #2 J7 3", one of its largest
competitors, in June 2008, the Group has not only extended its own brand
business from medium/high end market to the rural market, but also
increased its market share to over 20% which further strengthened its

market leadership in the PRC.

In addition, the Group is an OEM manufacturer of rechargeable mobile
phone battery packs and rechargers for mobile phones and notebook
computers which has gained the trust of well-known customers that mainly
include: Lenovo, Huawei, ZTE, UT Starcom, Sangfei, Hisense, Haier, etc.

The Group was ranked 28th by Forbes earlier this year in Forbes 2008
Enterprises in China with the Most Potential among 200 selected
enterprises, signifying the “SCUD 7RZEHR” brand recognition and its leading
position in the market.
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Financial Highlights

RIGHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008 BE-_ZZN\F+-A=+—HLEFE
(RMB million except where otherwise stated) (B2 EERAN LEBAREKYITR)
2008 2007 % Change
—EENF BT FEEDL
Total Production Capacity of Rechargeable FTEEMABER
Battery Packs (million piece) (B&8%) 75.0 48.0 56.3
Turnover B 1,252.7 960.9 30.4
Profit from Operations il 143.2 183.0 (21.7)
Profit Attributable to Equity Holders KARE=IFEA
of the Company P F) 132.0 15.5 750.6
Total Assets BEBE 1,537.9 1,153.1 33.37
Capital Expenditure =N 161.1 1215 326
EBITDA RETFE - BIE - TER
B iERT 2 & F| 199.1 40.3 394.0
Basic Earnings Per Share (RMB cents) BREREF(ARES) 13.18 1.58 734.2
Diluted Earnings Per Share (RMB cents) FREERT (ARES) 13.01 1.58 723.4
Current Ratio (Times) mENLLE (&) 3.2 5.4 (40.7)
Quick Ratio (Times) RENLLE (&) 2.7 4.6 (41.3)
Total Debt to Equity Ratio (%) B REERE ES 2 LL R (%) 0.6 15 (09pts/EDE)
Cash Position WEkn 457.1 4979 (8.2)
Proposed Final Dividend
Per Share (HKD cents) FOREARRETE GBI 2.0 2.0 -
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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors, | am pleased to present the annual
results of SCUD Group Limited (the “Company” or, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2008 (the
“Year”).

As the financial crisis continued to deepen in key markets around the
world in the second half of 2008, the operating environment for the Group
has become more challenging with manufacturers and retailers amongst
the most severely impacted. Nonetheless, the Group was able to maintain
steady growth in its business for the year under review from 2007. Turnover
was up 30.4% at RMB1,252.7 million while profit attributable to equity
holders rose by 750.6% to RMB132.0 million. Basic earnings per share for
the year were RMB 13.18 cents.

In June 2008, the Group completed the acquisition of the operating assets of
“Chaolitong B /738", its biggest competitor in the industry. The acquisition
not only helped the Group bring in additional revenue in the second half
of the year but also further consolidate our leading position in the industry.
In addition, we have been able to expand our market share to 20.3% from
around 12.0% at the expense of our competitors.

Fang Jin Chairman

& FE

BEALARR -

RABRKREZEMAREREREEBERAR (AR
AllEREMBARIRIAKE DEE-—FTN\F+=
A=t -ALFE(AFEDNEEERE -

“ERRN\FTHF  XIEREoREEATE SRR
BRENERYE RERTEENHEETIIEES
B FEM AEEEAFENEELR_TTLF
BINRFGFIER - EXBRESHE AR
15 AR #1,252,700,0007T 2 A R #132,000,0007C * 5
A3E & 30.4% K 750.6% ° & A8 & RLEAR BB 5
AR 13.1811.

AEER - FT\EXARREBENSANEFY T
[EhiE ]2 BB EE - ARE T LERTEIMGS B
BT RV R A BEAD RGN - B E I
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Chairman’s Statement

RS

Own brand business performed well during the year. The “SCUD FX=ERR”
brand is well-established in the medium/high end market in northern China,
southern China and the northeast regions. During the year under review, the
Group actively developed the northwest market with considerable success.
In 2008, the Group was named in “Forbes 2008 Enterprises in China with
the Most Potential” and was ranked 28th out of the 200 enterprises listed
therein. The tribute is a recognition of the “SCUD FRZERR " brand’s leading
market position in China. Following the acquisition of the operating assets of
“Chaolitong 8 738", the Group has accelerated its pace to develop the rural
market by increasing its market share and substantially expanding its sales
channel. As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s distributors numbered at
570, up from 360 a year earlier. Points of sales grew to 49,000 this year from
35,000 in the previous year. The growth has enabled the Group to expand
its market reach to different regions and establish a solid the foundation for
our future development.

As a result of the slowdown in the global economy, our OEM business
was affected. Although the sales of OEM notebook rechargeable batteries
grew sharply in the first three quarters of 2008, such growth in demand
for notebook computers and accessories started to taper off in the fourth
quarter. This trend is expected to continue into the second half of 2009.
The sales of mobile phone batteries were also impacted as key clients which
focus on overseas markets cut back on orders as a result of the economic
downturn.

SCUD Group Limited ~ REREEFR A A
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

OUTLOOK

The financial crisis has not only dampened the world economy but also
hurt consumption domestically in China. The Group expects the sales
volume of mobile phone market will slow down. Thanks to the acquisition
of the “Chaolitong 72 77 38" brand, the Group has been able to enhance
its economies of scale and competitive edge despite the challenging
business environment. The Group will focus on optimising its sales network
in 2009 by avoiding the overlapping of regional networks following
the acquisition of the “Chaolitong #8738 " brand. Own brand business is
expected to achieve substantial growth. The Group will also invest in the
development of more populated markets such as Chongging and Sichuan
in southwest China. The Group aims at increasing its market share in rural
areas in view of the growth potential of markets in the southwest.

The Chinese government has recently expanded the “Rural Household
Appliances Subsidy Programme” in an attempt to spur economic
growth while at the same time lifting the standard of living in rural areas.
Implemented since February 2009, the nationwide program gives rural
dwellers a subsidy of 13% on the purchase price of household electrical
appliances including mobile phones and personal computers when they
make a purchase. According to a Chinese Academy of Social Sciences
Research Report, the program represents RMB30 billion in government
spending annually. Furthermore, the competition between major handset
makers to launch low-priced mobile phones targeting at the lower-income
rural population may increase the penetration rate of mobile phones in rural
areas and may drive further the demand for rechargeable batteries among
mobile phone users in those areas.

The Group is committed to protecting its brand by maintaining a high
standard of quality and safety in its branded products. Leveraging on the
technology of SCUD, the Group has been able to further enhance the quality
and service of “Chaolitong 8 /738" branded products and earn trust in Chinese
made rechargeable battery products among consumers. With respect to
the expansion of sales network, the Group has finished renovating a total
of 4,000 sales counters over the past two years which has improved the
network and its brand image. Consumers can now purchase high quality
and safe rechargeable battery products at our sales counters at ease. The
Group expects to finish renovating a total of 6,000 sales counters by the end
of 2009 and raise its market share to over 30% in the next three years to
reflect the leading position of the Group in the market.

R
EMOES SITLART R - ERERALEH %
EEPEDE RIS HE R RNE - AT - ARER

FRUREET 1B 7038 | fn k(R — B BR RUR s - AR
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RS0 BINARINZR - AR P EAEARTRT
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

The Group believes the issuance of 3G licences by the PRC government
in January 2009 will encourage the purchase and upgrade of mobile
phones by users. The demand for 3G products in the coming few years
is expected to continue to increase, boosting the usage of mobile phones
and the demand for rechargeable batteries, thus creating more business
opportunities for the Group. The Group should be benefited from the
continued growth in the number of mobile phones in the PRC and the
substantial increase in power consumption by handsets as a result of
additional advanced functions and multi-media services.

In spite of the reversed economic conditions in the future, with our strong
brand advantage, extensive sales network, huge research and development
capability, quality management as well as a commitment to perform better,
we are confident that we will rise to the challenges ahead.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our deepest gratitude to our
customers, business partners and shareholders for their continued support.
| would also like to thank our staff for their hard work over the past year.

>] %
Fang Jin
Chairman

Fuzhou, the PRC
25 March 2009
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERE RO

Norin Easien Canal
RBRA

Notn Westem Cona Norfnem Cnna
ES\e

 EosiernBina

=%
s
==

Ceniral Chna
£

Soutn Nesterm Cnna
SRR

T

Soutnem Chna
=R

As at 31 December 2008, the Group's distributors numbered at 570,
up from 360 a year earlier
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Points of sales grew from 35,000 to 49,000 in 2008
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2008, the global financial turmoil triggered by the US subprime mortgage
crisis has led to a downturn in the global economy and created adverse
impacts and associated challenges for companies. During the second half
of 2008, various industries started to feel the impact. As the biggest mobile
phone rechargeable batteries manufacturer in the PRC, the Group was able
to perform satisfactorily during the period in spite of the dramatic economic
downturn and growing competition.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately RMB1,252.7 million, representing an increase of
approximately 30.4% compared to the same period last year. Gross profit
and profit attributable to equity holders were approximately RMB263.8
million and RMB132.0 million respectively, representing an increase of
8.3% and 750.6% compared to the same period last year. Gross profit
margin was approximately 21.1%, down from 25.3% over the same period
last year. Margin of profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was
approximately 10.5% (2007: 1.6%).

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
rechargeable battery packs and related accessories for mobile phones,
notebook computers, digital cameras and other electrical appliances
through its ownbrands, “SCUD FREER” and “Chaolitong B 113&”, as well as its
OEM business. The share of its own-brand business rose to 67.5% (2007:
64.1%) of the Group’s total revenue after completion of the acquisition of
the operating assets of “Chaolitong #8/138”. Revenue contribution from
the OEM business was down to 27.3% (2007: 33.8%) of total revenue as a
result of the global economic downturn and slowing demand for electronic
products since the second half of 2008, which led to substantial reductions
in orders from OEM customers. Gross profit margin of the Group was also
lower compared to last year as a result of a larger proportion of medium/
low end products in the sales mix following the acquisition of the operating
assets of “Chaolitong 8 J738". A drop in gross profit from the OEM business
in the second half of the year also led to the fall in gross profit margin.

STRONG FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
R R IR

Turnover & %8

24.83%

Gross Profit E 7

235.36%

E 3 e . e
BE-_ZTNFE - KBRS 2 IRIERN & /E
F RICEBRAREAGERBREER £ -ZF
NEFETHE - ZRTEBZHEZINTRARENZE - @&
ERREBZR TR RERNBEF NG - (ERPESEAH
BEEFE AT EEMAEER - AEEREADAR
SRR EE -

HE-ZTT/N\F+-A=+—HI1t RNEEHELE
A= AREE1,252,700,000 7T » £ 2 4 [F HAME LL 48 A0
#130.4% - EF| RE=EE ABRIEEF RIS B AHAR
# 263,800,000 7T ). 132,000,000 7T © 8= E R - F+
8.3% 12 750.6% ° M EFELF21.1%  WEF25.3%
T o AR RVERIEE ARG SR ERHAE105% (=
TELEFE16%)°
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[Chaolitong #8738 ] IR BT LR « LT -
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%75 - BEMIENEBLER TR OB 2 &8
BERBRAZE67.5%(ZFZTLF 1 64.1%) - OEM %75
PG EI L B A T8 % 27.3% (BT 44 : 33.8%) * *
ZRARZZEZN\FTHEFRAE  RIREEREYE
EHETEMNT RIFBERE  OEMBEF I EE
ERMARRLD - EREEFRREF THEBHRIRIE
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(Gross Profit MarginFE#1|%)

CAGR FESERE CAGR FEEERE

2004 D 515,800,000 2004 D 106,800,000 (20.7%)

2005 | 707,000,000 2005 [ 147,300,000 (20.8%)

2006 936,300,000 2006 Y 240,500,000 (25.7%)
2007 960,900,000 2007 ) ©/3.500,000 (25.3%)
2008 1,252,700,000 2008 [ 263,800,000 (21.1%)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SEGMENT REVENUE
Y ATE

).3% Other mobile phone peripherals Hft# #E B2 ER

7.9% Chargers &%

1.3% Digital product battery packs iz Q= b4

1.4% Notebook computer battery packs &2 A B E 8
56.6% Mobile phone battery packs B &% 5 E 48

27.3%

OEM business OEMZ7&

Percentage of OEM sales over total turnover
OEMSHEMHEEEEA DL

2008

OWN-BRAND BUSINESS

During the year under review, the sales volume of own-brand mobile phone
rechargeable batteries increased by approximately 72.5% to 43.1 million
units (2007: 25.0 million units) on a turnover of RMB 709.0 million (2007:
RMB499.0 million) of which 70% of sales came from “SCUDR E R ", a
renowned and well received brand in the PRC.

Since the acquisition of the operating assets of “Chaolitong /738" in June
2008, the Group has expanded its own-brand business to the rural
market. The expansion is aimed at taking advantage of the business
development works in rural areas by telecommunication operators. During
the year under review, a total of 13.1 million units of “Chaolitong #2/73@"
brand’s mobile phone rechargeable batteries were sold on a turnover of
approximately RMB131.6 million. The acquisition further consolidated the
market leadership of the Group in China. The Group’s market share rose to
approximately 20.3% from approximately 12.0%.

Following the acquisition, the “SCUD FRZEMER” brand will focus on launching
medium/high end mobile phone batteries while the “Chaolitong #2 /778"
brand will concentrate on the medium/low end market. The move is aimed
at enhancing cost effectiveness by producing batteries in bulk for specific
models of batteries and eliminating the overlapping of production by the
two brands. The strategy enhances our economies of scale and increases
our bargaining power over suppliers. Furthermore, in line with the strict
requirement on the quality and safety of its products, the Group has
enhanced the quality of “Chaolitong #&7J38” brand products by leveraging
the technology knowhow of the Group and has generated trust in Chinese
made products among consumers.

67.9%

Own brand business BB T8 %7

Percentage of own brand sales over total turnover

BRMBHEEREXERNL o
9.2%

18.0% Mobile phone battery packs BEE =% w4
7.9% Notebook computer battery packs 2327 i & 40
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0.3% Chargers z &%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ANNUAL SALES VOLUMES OF OWN BRAND RECHARGEABLE BATTERIES

BEmE-AABEUREFHEHE

Ten thousands pieces & 5

2004 DY -0 =

2005 D | -6 163

2006 eI /6 1597 235 116
2007 e IR 5/ 1499 310 140
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Business series Gold series

OEM BUSINESS

In addition to its own-brand business, the Group also manufactures battery
products for major domestic and overseas mobile phone makers through
OEM. As at 31 December 2008, turnover of the Group’s OEM business
reached RMB342.2 million (2007: RMB325.2 million), representing 27.3%
(2007: 33.8%) of total revenue. Major customers included Lenovo, Huawei,
/TE, UT Starcom, Sangfei, Hisense and Haier, among others. During the
year, sales volume of mobile phone batteries of the Group’s OEM business
reached 11.7 million units (2007: 13.3 million units).

Owing to the global economic slowdown, many exporters have scaled down
their orders. During the year, the OEM business of the Group was affected.
Although the sales of OEM notebook grew sharply in the first three quarters
of 2008, such growth in demand for notebook computers and accessories
started to taper off in the fourth quarter. The sales of mobile phone batteries
was also impacted as key clients who focus on overseas markets, cut back
on orders as a result of the economic downturn.

SALES NETWORK

With its extensive sales network and outstanding brand image, the Group
was not only able to effectively consolidate its brand name but also facilitate
the penetration of its products in different markets. During the year, much of
the sales of the Group came from the coastal regions in eastern China, and
through effective marketing and sales strategies, the southern and northern
regions of China also became our key markets. After the acquisition of the
operating assets of “Chaolitong 8 /J3", the Group actively strengthened
the sales network of the “Chaolitong 8 J73#
cities and rural areas in the PRC in order to reduce the risk and cost in
extending to the rural area whilst it accelerates its access to the rural market.
As at 31 December 2008, the Group had more than 570 first tier distributors
and more than 49,000 points of sales.

" brand in tier two and tier three
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TR R R

In the meantime, to further enhance the efficiency of business
management, the Group sought to optimize the sales network of mobile
phone batteries of the “SCUD FR=ERR” brand and upgrade the image of
sales counters so as to enhance the brand image. The Group has completed
renovation for a total of 4,000 sales counters over the past two years which
strengthened the network and brand images. The Group anticipates the
renovation of a total of 6,000 sales counters will be completed successfully
by the end of 2009 and in the meantime, the Group continues to allow
consumers to choose rechargeable battery products of high quality and
safety standard at the sales counters of the Group.

PARTNERSHIP AND PRODUCT RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT

In view of the growing popularity of notebook computers among domestic
consumers, and leveraging the Group’s prestigious reputation and market
leading position, the Group reached a long-term supply agreement with
a subsidiary of Sanyo Corporation of Japan, the largest lithium battery
manufacturer in the world in 2008. Sanyo Corporation fully supported
the supply of lithium bare battery cells to the Group for the production of
notebook computer batteries which ensured that the Group enjoyed a stable
source of income and battery supply. During the year, while keeping abreast
of the notebook computer market, the Group maintained relationship
with Sanyo Corporation and actively discussed the possibility of further
cooperation.
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With advancements in technology, new portable electronic products
are being introduced to the market more frequently and the Group also
sought to provide a wider range of products. In respect of research and
development (“R&D”), having invested in resources for some time, the
Group is currently working on the research and development of high-power
batteries with leading telecommunication solution providers in the world,
in order to further increase the types of branded battery products to cater
for different customers. Furthermore, this newly developed products will
use other materials of premium quality instead of lead-acid materials which
are harmful to the environment. The size of product will also be smaller
while fulfilling all the requirements of environmental policy of the PRC
Government. In 2008, the Group recorded R&D expenses of approximately
RMB17.1 million (2007: RMB12.5 million) which accounted for 1.37% of
the turnover for 2008 (2007: 1.30%). R&D expenses mainly comprised
of staff cost for R&D personnel of approximately RMB4.8 million, molding
expenses of approximately RMB5.8 million, depreciation of approximately
RMB3.6 million and inspection fee of approximately RMB2.1 million.

OUTLOOK

Year 2009 is full of challenges with many uncertainties in the business
environment. The Group will implement a number of measures and policies
in order to improve its profitability and maintain its competitive edge.

STRENGTHEN OPERATING EFFICIENCIES BY
OPTIMIZING SALES NETWORK

After the completion of the acquisition of the “Chaolitong #8/13@” brand
and its operating assets, the sales channel of the Group was widened,
with an expanded coverage across the country. To avoid overlapping of
regional networks, the Group will adopt different marketing and sales
strategies and leverage the resources and brand equity of “Chaolitong /&
7738” brand. More stringent controls will be implemented on distributors
while adjustments will be made on those distributors with less satisfactory
business performance so as to strengthen the reach of the Group’s network
and accelerate the integration of the “Chaolitong & /7:®” brand in the
market.

INCREASE MARKET SHARE BY EXPLORING THE
SOUTH-WEST MARKET

The Group will allocate additional resources in the development of the
south-west region of the PRC including Chongging and Sichuan. As
these cities have a larger population and the potential for development
is enormous, it is believed that the rural market share of the Group will
continue to have substantial room for expansion in 2009. If the Group
manages to explore these markets, the overall market share in China can
further be increased. In the coming three years, the Group expects to raise
the market share in the PRC to over 30%.
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CLEAR BRAND POSITIONING WITH SYNERGY
EFFECT

Following the expansion of the scope of subsidy pursuant to the “Rural
Household Electrical Appliances Subsidy Programme” and the issuance of
3G licences by the central government of the PRC, the demand for mobile
phone batteries and notebook computer batteries is expected to receive a
boost as a result. On one hand, the Group will leverage on the technology of
SCUD to improve the product quality of the “Chaolitong #8 /738" brand. On
the other hand, the Group will focus on launching medium/high end mobile
phone batteries for the “SCUD FRTERR” brand to meet the latest market trend.
The clearer market positioning of the two brands can also raise production
efficiency while accelerating the penetration of products in different levels of
the consumer market.

EXPAND REVENUE BASE BY ENHANCING
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CAPABILITY

To meet market demands, the Group has launched more new battery
models for various portable electronic devices. The Group will actively
enhance its research and development capability. Currently, the Group
is seeking cooperation opportunities with battery cell producers in the
PRC or considering the setting up of its own battery cell production plant,
moving the business further up in the value chain. These moves will not
only stabilize the supply of key raw materials and allow the Group to control
its costs more efficiently, but will also enable the Group to master the core
technology of battery cell production and help strengthen its research and
development capability and competitiveness.

ENHANCING BRAND EQUITY BY STRENGTHENING
PRODUCT MIX

The sales of branded batteries will continue to be the Group’s main revenue
source. The Group is still committed to diversifying its product mix with
a view to launch more products under the “SCUD 7RFERR” brand apart
from rechargeable batteries. The Group is in the early stages of planning to
introduce premium electronic products and accessories under the “SCUD
FRERR" brand and for them to be sold through the existing network, so as
to fully utilize the value of the “SCUD FR=ERR” brand. It is expected that the
move will further enhance our brand equity and broaden the revenue base.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Despite difficult business conditions, the consolidated turnover of the Group
increased by 30.4% to approximately RMB1,252.7 million, as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2007. Gross profit for 2008 was approximately
RMB263.8 million, representing an increase of approximately 8.3% against
that of the same period in 2007. The profit attributable to the equity holders
recorded an impressive growth and increased to approximately RMB132.0
million (2007: RMB15.5 million).

The operating results of Chaolitong Technology Company Limited (“CLTT”)
had been consolidated into the Group’s operating results after 7 June 2008.
The acquisition has brought synergies to the Group in terms of shared
procurement at lower cost, more efficient application of resources and
achieving a much larger scale in a shorter timeframe. The Group expects
the scale benefits and the synergies to the business will be realized with the
integration process.

Turnover

Mobile phone rechargeable batteries remain the major revenue driver of the
Group, while the notebook computer battery business became the Group’s
second major revenue contributor. The sales of mobile phone rechargeable
batteries products has contributed approximately 74.6% of the Group’s
consolidated turnover. The sale of notebook computer batteries achieved
strong growth and brought about increased income and profit contribution
to the Group, with sales of approximately RMB116.0 million which
represents an increase of approximately 59.7% over that of the same period
in 2007. The acceleration of the development pace of notebook computers
in the PRC and the popularity of Netbook/EeePC, provided sound business
opportunities for the Group’s information technology sector operations.

B % ol B8
BEEERARE ARENSAEEEARE

THF+ A=+ —HLEFELR EFA304% % ’J/\
R#1,252,700,0007C c ZZEZNFHEMBOAEAR
¥ 263,800,0007T * BT T L FRH LFAL83% °
BaEFAABRGAEMEESIBER  FROARKE
132,000,000 70 ( ZZZ+4F : AR# 15,500,0007T) ©

BIBAMRERAR(TBOBR )z 2EXES =
%AiﬁﬂtﬁéﬂﬁéA$%HZ%§%ﬁ°Wﬁ$
ERAEEFERBRME  AEEEERAREEA
BEKA - BEMERER - AREBIER AR %
BHRE - AEEREBEEESER  EBOREREK
BRI BIFIAER

S

REBWZDEEREVRBEFE _RFTEEMELS -

MELABKEDEBERKAREEE _REZRAR
R BBEEFAREBNERNHENEERREE
HFT746% c BRATBMEONHHEETRRBER - A
REBTRESHEEELBFER  HEBEHOARE
116,000,0007 * M- T+ FRIEIERH59.7% ° F
B AB BRI RBERELAEN FeePCF
BUORERMNER - AREERNEMEHIER D RMR
TFENETEIE -

Annual Report 2008 =T \FFHR _



Management Discussion and Analysis

Segment Results

For 2008, main growth revenue still came from the Group’s own-brand
business. Turnover attributable to the Group’s own-brand business
increased by 37.2% to approximately RMB845.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2008 from approximately RMB616.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2007. The Group’s own-brand business as a
percentage of the Group’s turnover was maintained at approximately 67.5%
in 2008 (2007: 64.1%). The growth in own-brand business for 2008 was
mainly contributed by the growth in sales of mobile phone rechargeable
batteries, which increased by RMB210.2 million or 42.2% as compared
with 2007. However, the sales of batteries for digital cameras was decreased
by RMB30.3 million or 65.0% as compared with 2007 as a result of more
batteries for digital cameras with smaller capacity and lower unit price were
sold during 2008. Approximately 74.0% (2007: 100%) of the Group’s own-
brand products were sold in the PRC market under the “SCUD RERR"
brand and approximately 26.0% (2007: N/A) of the Group’s own-brand
products were sold under the “Chaolitong 8 /738” brand.

For the OEM business, due to the continuing slowdown in the global
mobile phone market, most of our customers were inevitably affected.
The turnover attributable to the Group’s OEM business was slightly
increased by approximately 5.2% from approximately RMB325.2 million to
approximately RMB342.2 million and the percentage of the Group’s OEM
business accounted for approximately 27.3% of the Group’s turnover in
2008 (2007: 33.8%). The growth in OEM business for 2008 was mainly
contributed by the growth in the sale of OEM notebook computers batteries,
which was increased by approximately RMB37.8 million or approximately
61.9% as compared with 2007. The sale of OEM mobile phone batteries
was dropped by approximately RMB21.2 million or approximately 8.6% as
many exporters had scaled down their orders owing to the global economic
slowdown.

SCUD Group Limited ~ REREEFR A A

Par e

R-TTN\EFEMs WX EERKEAEENEE
MEES - BHEZTTN\F+ZA=+—HLFE "
REBBEAEMBERBLEZ EEBHBRE_TTLF
+ZA=+—HIEFELHARME616,000,000 7T 1 10
37.2% = #) AR #845,100,0007C c A ZFZT )\ F -
REBEEMBEGMEAEREEENT D LR
£)675%( —ZFZLF 1 64.1%) - BLERMEEBKR_Z
ENFZERFTESHRNBHEF RSB MIEE
WA M- ZTZF 11 AR 210,200,000 7Tk
42.2% o R - BERZZZENFLHEELRER/NKRE
BREZEISHAKED  SHBEEER_STLF K
AR 30,300,000 708 65.0% ° AEEL) 74.0%( ==
T4 100%) HE B mhEEmIA [SCUD RERR | m#
EREMSHE - MAKEEL26.0% (ZFZLF T
HA)KEE mEES [Chaolitong #8 /118 | G hE7E
TiGHE -

BOEMEM S - BRRIEBEEFETISHFENE -
REBRIMHFFPEBEMTINFE - ZEEOEM
TS IEIL 2 & XA R 325,200,000 TTEHIE AN
#15.2% E#) AR 342,200,000 7T » 1AL [E OEM #
BIEAREE ST NFEER I BN R27.3% (=
TTH4:33.8%) c OEMEBR T /N\FMHIEEE
EREOEMEBRABMEMFE LM BR_TTLF
#9049 A R # 37,800,000 5 4761.9% © m%%w&ﬂ.ﬁ
WEE - RELOFEMPEIE - SOEMBEEES
ZSHETERA AR 21,200,000 78 498.6% ©




Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB988.9 million
in 2008 (2007: RMB717.4 million), representing an increase of 37.8% as
compared to last year. Direct materials, direct labour and other production
costs accounted for approximately 89.7% (2007: 89.3%), 4.4% (2007:
3.5%) and 5.9% (2007: 7.2%) of the cost of sales.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Overall gross profit margin decreased from approximately 25.3% for 2007
to approximately 21.1% for the 2008. For the Group’s own-brand business,
the gross profit margin for current year was approximately 24.2%, down
by 3.9 percentage points from approximately 28.1% for 2007. Decrease in
gross profit margin was mainly due to the increasing prices of raw materials
for Li-ion battery cells and other packaging materials throughout the first half
of the year. Moreover, since the “Chaolitong #27738" brand focuses on the
development and production of low end series rechargeable products with
slightly lower margin, hence the Group’s gross profit margin was reduced
after the integration. However, the acquisition of the “Chaolitong %87
38" brand will enhance the variety of products to cover new mobile phone
models and our integration will not only help further strengthening the
Group’s revenue base and stabilize market prices of rechargeable battery
packs, but will also remove overlapping of resources which in turn should
improve the overall profitability of the Group.

For the OEM business, in light of the keen competition and margin erosion in
the global mobile phone market, the gross profit margin was approximately
19.0%, decreased by approximately 2.5% against 2007.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders

For the current year, the Group recorded profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company of approximately RMB132.0 million (2007: RMB15.5
million) while the margin of profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company was increased to approximately 10.5% (2007: 1.6%).

In 2008, the Group recorded administrative expenses of approximately
RMB90.2 million (2007: RMB59.7 million) which accounted for
approximately 7.2% of the turnover for 2008 (2007: 6.2%). Administrative
expenses mainly comprise provision for bad and doubtful debts of
approximately RMB16.8 million (2007: RMBO0.3 million), depreciation of
approximately RMB46.7 million (2007: RMB18.6 million), research and
development expenses of approximately RMB17.1 million (2007: RMB12.5
million) and approximately RMB5.0 million (2007: Nil) being amortisation of
intangible assets arising from acquisition.

SHEMAR

RZBZNF AEEHNEERAIANAEARE
988,900,0007T( =TT+ AR 717,400,0007T) °

R-TTHEERE378% c AEME EBEATIRE
i EERA D B ERANKE.7% (Z T T F

89.3%) + 4.4% (ZZTZTHF :35%) k59% (ZTT+

£ 72%) -

EMRENE

BREMNEA -_ZZLFHBIR TRE_ZTNF
#121.1% - AAKENEBEREEBTE - FRZER
KU K242%  B_TTLFHN281% THKIEED
B o EFMETHDEZAN L FRERTEBRMF
R BA B S EHERR LIRFTEL © tESh - BRI 3E M
EEERRE RAEEERAERENER Ot EEmR
25 Bt - REHHR - ARBZEFE T - AW -
Wi [ 738 | s iR T EmBEUREI B EE
ISR AR TEAE - SREAARENRAZ
W&%E_u\}f**ﬂiﬁé’]mﬁ BRI LURRR B RE

iR AR E AR AT o

FOEMEB M T - ERNIREBBEFETHHF AR

BRFIBER  EMNENR19.0%  B_FTTLFTE
#12.5% °

A AEEF
REBMPAFEERESARREREEAREREFHA
FR# 132,000,000 7% (= ZEZ+4F : AR 15,500,000
TL) 0 MARREZSFHE ABISEFE EAE4105%
(ZEZTLF 1 16%) -

RZZENF AEEESTHRAIOARE
90,200,000t (ZEZ+4: AR¥59,700,0007T) * 14
ZETN\FEERENT2% (ZTTLF 1 6.2%) © 1T
¥+ EBERERBELN AR 16,800,000t (=F
%tﬁ- AREE300,0007T) - HTEL AR 46,700,000
T(ZEZT+F: AR 18600,0007T)  #f 3% &
é’*ﬁﬁéz%w\ﬁeiﬁn 100,0007C(ZEELF : AR¥
12,500,0007T) * REAWBELNEFLEEHHHAR
5,000,000 C (ZET+F - &) o

Annual Report 2008 =T \FFHR _



Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and distribution expenses of approximately RMB43.4 million (2007:
RMB29.1 million) accounted for approximately 3.5% (2007: 3.0%) of the
turnover. In order to enhance the brand image, the management team
demonstrated their execution capability in carrying out enhancement to
the Group’s sales network and renovation of over 4,000 display counters
up to the end of 2008. As at 31 December 2008, an accumulated amount
of approximately RMB66.3 million had been invested on the renovation
project. Hence, selling and distribution expenses included approximately
RMB17.0 million (2007: Nil) being the amortisation of such renovation
spending. Approximately RMB11.9 million (2007: RMB13.2 million) has
been spent on advertising and promotion.

Other revenue of approximately RMB19.2 million comprising approximately
RMB9.6 million (2007: RMB6.8 million) being foreign exchange gain during
the current year and approximately RMB4.7 million (2007: RMB12.5
million) being bank interest income.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Against economic and market uncertainties, the Group continued to
maintain a strong liquidity position with low gearing and healthy cash flows
which allows the Group to strengthen its competitive position. The Group
generated a net cash inflow from operating activities of approximately
RMB257.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2008, compared with
approximately RMB18.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2007.
The Group’s cash and bank balances and pledged bank deposits as at
31 December 2008 amounted to approximately RMB457.1 million (31
December 2007: approximately RMB497.9 million). The Group’s bank
borrowings outstanding as at 31 December 2008 amounted to RMB7.8
million (2007: RMB14.4 million) were all carried at fixed interest rate and
there was no particular seasonality of the Group’s borrowings. The Group
monitored capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total
equity of the Group. Total debt to equity ratio of the Group expressed
as a percentage of interest bearing loans and other borrowings over the
total equity of approximately RMB1,220.7 million (31 December 2007:
approximately RMB972.3 million) was 0.6% as at 31 December 2008 (at
31 December 2007: 1.5%). In addition, the Group has restricted short term
bank deposits of approximately RMB105.9 million (31 December 2007:
approximately RMB29.4 million).
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As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s current ratio was 3.2 times (31
December 2007: 5.4 times) based on current assets of approximately
RMB1,023.0 million (31 December 2007: RMB967.8 million) and current
liabilities of approximately RMB316.7 million (31 December 2007:
RMB179.8 million). The trade and notes receivables and trade and notes
payable balances of the Group were increased by approximately RMB127.3
million and RMB124.2 million respectively as compared with that as of
31 December 2007. Such increases mainly resulted from the inclusion of
the year end balance of trade and notes receivables of CLTT, which was
approximately RMB83.5 million and the year end balance of trade and notes
payables of CLTT, which was approximately RMB108.1 million.

Trade receivable turnover days were approximately 74.3 days for the year
ended 31 December 2008 as compared to approximately 79.6 days for the
year ended 31 December 2007. Inventory turnover days were approximately
60.4 days for the year ended 31 December 2008 as compared to
approximately 62.1 days for the year ended 31 December 2007. Trade
payable turnover days were approximately 77.1 days for the year ended 31
December 2008 as compared to approximately 42.8 days for the year ended
31 December 2007.

Net Current Assets and Net Assets

The Group’s net current assets as at 31 December 2008 were approximately
RMB706.4 million, decreased by 10.4% from the balance of approximately
RMB788.0 million recorded as at 31 December 2007. Net assets rose
to approximately RMB1,221.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB247.9 million or 25.5% over the balance as at 31
December 2007.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2008, bank loans of approximately RMB1.0 million (2007:
RMB1.4 million) were secured by the Group’s motor vehicles with a carrying
amount of approximately RMB2.6 million (2007: RMB3.0 million), bank
loans of USD1.0 million were secured by an equivalent amount of Chinese
Renminbi and notes payable of RMB15.6 million were secured by an
equivalent amount of notes receivable.

NZEEN\F+ZA=FT—HB ' AEERHLEA
32B(ZTTEF+ZA=+—H:54%) BRER
FEEMH AR 1,023,000,0007T(ZEE+E+_A
=+—8: AR¥967,800,0007C) LREEBBHOAR
#316,700,000 (= EELFE+—A=+—H: AR¥
179,800,000 7C) 51 &)  AEBE MM E 708 R FEWK
ZEUARENEZFARENZESIREBEE =22+
FHZA=1+—BIEFEZINH AR 127,300,000 7T
R ARM124,200,0007T © FZEFT A BEBNE
[/ FE B 5 5078 I JE IR B s # 4 A R #583,500,000
TRBOBEENFRAENE S B RENZEEH
49 A% 108,100,000 7T ©

RBE-ZZEN\F+_A=+—HILFE  BKEFHK
THEBREHNRTAIE  MPABE_ZELF+ A
=t —BIEFREAQNRT9.6R - REE—TTNF+
A=1T—HLLFE FEBEXEHR60.48 - MIE
ECRRAF+ A=+ —-BIEFERYRE21A -
RBE-ZTN\F+_A=+—BHLFE EHEZK
HEERBANARTILIA  MRBE-ZZ+F+=A
=+ —RLEFEANNR4288 -

RBEEFENREAEFE
REERZZT\F+_A=+—"HBHORBEEFED
ABARM 706,400,000 R-ZFTLF+-_A=1+—
H RS RAREE LI A R B 788,000,000 TTR 2 10.4% © &
EEFHER T A AR 1,221,200,0007F @ 8 - FEETH4F
+Z A=+—BHKFELE NG A RS 247,900,000 T3k
25.5% °

BEE A

RZZTENFF+ZA=+—H ' BEHAREK
1,000,000 T (ZEZ+ 4 - AR 1,400,0007T) KR
TERIIAREEIREERLOARE 2,600,000 (=
T ARK3,000,0007T) 8 TEERIF - AH
1,000,000 E LW IRITEFA S E S EH AR BIER
- RABARE15600,000THENZEUSESE
B FE U SRR VAR -

Annual Report 2008 =T \FFHR _
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Commitments

During the year, the Group was committed to the expansion of the Group’s
existing production facilities to enhance its production capacity. The Group’s
capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2008 amounting to
approximately RMB137.9 million (2007: RMB139.8 million) was mainly
associated to the expansion of existing capacity and the construction of the
new production plant in Fuzhou.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2008, the Group has not provided any form of guarantee
for any company outside the Group and has not been involved in any
material legal proceedings for which provision for contingent liabilities was
required.

Capital Structure

During the year, as part of the consideration pursuant to the Agreement for
the acquisition of the operating assets of Chaolitong Electronic Company
Limited (“CLTE"), the Company issued and allotted 30,000,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each at HK$1.18 each to the Vendor on 7 September 2008.
Consequently, the issued share capital of the Company was increased by
approximately HK$3.0 million (represented by 30,000,000 ordinary shares)
to approximately HK$102.2 million (represented by 1,022,001,246 ordinary
shares). Since the net profit after taxation targets has been met for the
financial year ended 31 December 2008, it is expected that 10,000,000
shares of HK$0.10 each at HK$1.18 will be issued to the Vendor as part of
the consideration during 2009.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

For the year 2008, the Group conducted its business transactions
principally in Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group has not experienced any
material difficulties or negative impacts on its operations as a result of
fluctuations in currency exchanges rates. Although the Group has certain
bank balances denominated in United States Dollars, Japanese Yen
and Hong Kong Dollars, their proportion to the Group’s total assets is
insignificant. The directors considered that no hedging of exchange risk is
required and there were no financial instruments being used for hedging
purposes during the year. Nevertheless, the management will continue to
monitor the foreign exchange exposure and will take prudent measures as
and when it is appropriate.
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Employee, Remuneration Policies and Share Option Scheme

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had 3,730 full-time employees (2007:
2,380). The salaries of the Group’s employees were determined by the
personal performance, professional qualification, industry experience of
the employee and relevant market trends. The Group ensures all levels
of employees are paid competitively within the standard in the market
and employees are rewarded on a performance-related basis within the
framework of the Group’s salary, incentives and bonus scheme. The
management reviews the remuneration policy of the Group on a regular
basis and evaluates the working performance of the employees. The
remuneration of the employees includes salaries, allowances, year-end
bonus and social insurance. According to the relevant prevailing laws and
regulations of the PRC, the Group has participated in the social insurance
plans set up by the related local government authorities, including pension
funds, medical insurance (including maternity insurance), unemployment
insurance and work-related injury insurance. The Group has also
participated in the mandatory provident fund scheme for its Hong Kong
employees in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance.

The Company'’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant
to a resolution passed on 3 December 2006 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees. Under the Scheme,
the Board may grant options to eligible employees, including directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
The Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years and the Company
by ordinary resolution in general meeting or the Board may at anytime
terminate the Scheme without prejudice to the options granted during the
life of the Scheme and which remain unexpired immediately prior to such
termination. As at 31 December 2008, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted under the pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted by the Company prior to its listing
and which remained outstanding under the Scheme was 16,429,000 shares
(2007: 23,830,000 shares), representing approximately 1.6% (2007:
approximately 2.4%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that time.
Since the adoption of the Scheme and as at 31 December 2008, no share
option has been granted or exercised under such Scheme, 360,000 share
options were forfeited and 7,041,000 share options expired during the year.
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Use of Proceeds

The Company raised proceeds of HK$604.0 million in aggregate as a result
of the initial public offering (“IPO”) of the Company and net proceeds
of approximately HK$568.3 million was received after the deduction of
relevant IPO fees and commission incurred. Up to 31 December 2008,
the Group has utilized approximately RMB96.3 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$109.2 million) on the expansion of production capacity
and plant construction, approximately RMB88.6 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$100.4 million) on brand promotion and improvement of
Group’s distribution network, approximately RMB128.2 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$145.4 million) on the acquisition of the Sale Assets of
CLTE and the Sale Interest of CLTT, and approximately RMB55.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$62.4 million) on repayment of bank
borrowings. Remaining net proceeds of approximately RMB133.1 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$150.9 million) were mainly used as daily
working capital and held as deposits with banks in the PRC.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Fang Jin, aged 50, is an Executive Director and the Chairman of the
Group, and is a senior economist. He is also a co-founder of the Group.
Mr. Fang is mainly responsible for the Group’s developmental planning,
operational and corporate investment decision-making and brand strategy.
Mr. Fang has been leading the Board for collective decision-making for
years and has set a very clear direction for SCUD product management
and brand construction. He commenced his career at the age of 18, and
has accumulated over twenty years of experience in the mobile phone
accessories industry and related operation management. He has very
keen discernment and vision on the exploration of brand market and the
marketability of new products. Prior to the establishment of Scud (Fujian)
Electronics Co. Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”) in 1997, Mr. Fang was engaged,
as a sole proprietor, in the sale of communication products and accessories
in the PRC. In December 1996, he found Cai Hong Group (Hong Kong)
Co. Ltd. (“Cai Hong”) in conjuction with partners including Mr. Lin Chao
(and established Scud Electronics in October 1997). Mr. Fang has received
several awards including:

2003 National Advanced Individual On Projects of End Users’
Satisfaction

2004 Excellent Runners of Technological Private Enterprises in
China

2004 Fujian Top Ten Venture Heroes in the Commercial Sector

2005 China Top Ten Excellent Entrepreneurs in Brand
Construction

2005 The Mudell’s World Executive Awards for Achievement in
Business and Economy

2006 Annual Excellent Persons in Fujian Economy

2006 National Excellent Managers of Users’ Satisfaction

Mr. Fang is the Vice Chairman of the Joint Industrial and Commercial
Association of Mawei District in Fuzhou City Economic and Technological
Development Region, the First Honorary Chairman of the Fuzhou Chamber
of Commerce in Shenzhen, a member of the 5th Standing Committee of
the Association of the Battery Industry in China and a member of the 11th
Committee of the Mawei District in Fuzhou City Economic and Technological
Development Region of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference.
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Mr. Fang is the sole director and shareholder of Swift Joy Holdings Limited,
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December
2008, Mr. Fang was interested in 402,000,000 shares, representing
approximately 39.33% of the issued share capital of the Company, and
3,500,000 shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Company’s pre-listing share option
scheme, representing approximately 0.34% of the issued share capital of
the Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Lin Chao, aged 43, is an Executive Director and the Vice Chairman of
the Group. He is also a co-founder of the Group and an economist. Mr.
Lin is mainly responsible for assisting Mr. Fang to formulate the Group’s
development and operations, investments and brand strategies. Mr. Lin
had excellent performance in aspects of OEM business development,
purchasing cost control and customer relationship. In 1997, in conjunction
with Mr. Fang Jin as a partner, he established Cai Hong (and established
Scud Electronics in October 1997). Mr. Lin had been a director, vice general
manager, general manager and chief executive of Scud Electronics and
possessed over 20 years’ experience in business development and inventory
control in the electronics industry. Mr. Lin was originally a staff member
of a State-owned enterprise, and entered the commercial sector in 1986.
He was engaged, as a sole proprietor, in the distribution and retail sale of
telecommunication products such as telephones, walkie-talkies and long-
distance cordless phones in Fuzhou, the main accessories of which include
mobile phone batteries and chargers. He also set up repair workshops
to provide after-sale maintenance services. Mr. Lin is a member of the
standing council of Fuzhou Foreign Investment Association and a member
of the 11th Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Fuzhou City.

Mr. Lin is the sole director and shareholder of Right Grand Holdings Limited,
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December
2008, Mr. Lin was interested in 180,000,000 shares, representing
approximately 17.61% of the issued share capital of the Company, and
2,800,000 shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Company’s pre-listing share option
scheme, representing approximately 0.27% of the issued share capital of
the Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.
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Guo Quan Zeng, aged 48, is an Executive Director and President of the
Group, and is an engineer. He is responsible for the management of the
Group's daily operations. He joined the Group in July 1997. He had been the
managers of the research and development department, sales department,
planning department, production department and quality control
departments of Scud Electronics, and had been director, vice general
manager and vice president. He has abundant experience in junior level
management in OEM business development, brand promotion, product
research and development and quality control. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Guo was a lieutenant commander engineer of the PRC navy mainly
responsible for establishing and maintaining wireless telecommunication
systems. Mr. Guo has over 25 years of experience in the research and
development and quality management in electronic products. Mr. Guo
graduated from the Navy Senior Electronic Engineering School with a
bachelor’s degree in radio telecommunication engineering in 1983.

Mr. Guo is the sole director and shareholder of Cheer View Holdings Limited,
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December
2008, Mr. Guo was interested in 18,000,000 shares, representing
approximately 1.76% of the issued share capital of the Company, and
2,450,000 shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Company’s pre-listing share option
scheme, representing approximately 0.24% of the issued share capital of
the Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Li Hui Qiu, aged 43, is an Executive Director and Vice President of the Group,
and is a senior economist. Mr. Li assists the President in managing the
Group’s internal management, information system, external administrative
affairs and investments. Mr. Li joined the Group in January 2003 and had
excellent achievement in the setting up of the Group’s information system
and the implementation of brand strategy. Mr. Li was the Director and
Executive Deputy General Manager of Fujian Yutek Electronics Company
Limited, a company held by Furi Stock Company Limited, Deputy Head of
the enterprise management division of Liaoning Investment Group, Director
of Shenyang Jinjian Short Fiber Composite Material Company Limited, a
company held by Liaoning Investment Group, Director of Liaoning Jianye
Technology Development Co. Ltd. and production factory head of No.35
Factory of Shenyan Aircraft Industry Group. Mr. Li has accumulated nearly
20 years of experience in manufacturing industry management. Mr. Li
graduated from the Nanjing Aeronautic University in 1988 with a Bachelor’s
degree in engineering. In 1998, he graduated from Beijing Aeronautic
University with a Master’s degree in engineering.
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Non-Executive Director

Ho Man, aged 39, is a non-executive Director. He holds a Master of Science
degree in Finance from the London Business School, and is a Chartered
Financial Analyst and Certified Public Accountant. Mr. Ho is the Managing
Director and Head of China Growth and Expansion Capital of CLSA Capital
Partners (HK) Ltd. He joined the CLSA Group in 1997. Mr. Ho has over
10 years of experience in private equity and he has been responsible for
deal sourcing, evaluation and structuring, negotiation, post investment
monitoring and realization, with particular emphasis on Hong Kong and the
PRC. Mr. Ho was appointed a non-executive Director of the Company on 3
December 2006.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Heng Kwoo Seng, aged 61, is the managing partner of Morison Heng,
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
has worked with a number of companies listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited either in the capacity of company secretary or as
an independent non-executive director. He joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director on 3 December 2006.

Wang Jing Zhong, aged 53, is an independent non-executive Director of the
Company and a senior engineer. He graduated from East China University
of Science & Technology with a Bachelor’s degree in chemistry. He has
nearly 12 years of experience in the management of the battery industry. He
had served as the engineer-in-charge of the household products division in
the Ministry of Light Industries, as deputy department head of the campus
department of the Education Bureau and as the deputy officer-in-charge
of the Household Products Office. He is currently the Executive Vice-
president and Secretary General of China Battery Industry Association. Mr.
Wang joined the Company as an independent non-executive Director on 3
December 2006.
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Wang Jian Zhang, aged 63, is an independent non-executive Director of
the Company and is a senior engineer. Mr. Wang graduated from Xian
Military Institute of Telecommunication Engineering. He has 22 years of
experience in electronic technology and management. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Wang had served as deputy director of the Promotion Division
of Comprehensive Planning Department under Ministry of Electronics
Industry, director of the Comprehensive Planning and the Investment
Division under Ministry of Mechanical and Electrical Industry, director-
general of the Comprehensive Planning Department under Ministry
of Electronics, and director-general of the Comprehensive Planning
Department under the Ministry of Information Industry. Mr. Wang joined the
Company on 3 December 2006 as an independent non-executive Director.

Senior Management

Pan Liang Chun, aged 35, is currently the general manager of Scud
Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Scud Shenzhen”) He is responsible
for the entire operations of Scud Shenzhen. The main operation of the
Scud Shenzhen was originally commercial premiums and OEM products
and has now been completely directed to the production of SCUD brand
products. Mr. Pan joined the Group in December 2001 and had served as
the director of the operation of the north-western, central and Guangdong
Regions of the Scud Electronics and the general manager of the Own
Brand Affairs Department. He had superior judgment and wisdom in brand
market development and planning. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Pan was
the head of the manufacturing division of Fuging Dayi Electronic Company
Limited, general manager of Fuzhou Weitong Leatherware Company
Limited and general manager of Gansu Wanling Telecom Equipment
Company Limited. Mr. Pan has nearly eleven years of experience in the
sales of telecommunication products. Since he joined the Group, he has
been mainly responsible for the development of sales distribution, brand
construction and marketing management. Mr. Pan graduated from Fujian
Broadcasting University in 1997 with a Bachelor's degree in business
administration.
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Qiu Jun Ming, age 62, is the general manager of Scud Electronics. He
is responsible for the entire operations of Scud Electronics. The main
responsible business is the production of OEM products, including mobile
phone batteries and chargers and notebook computer batteries. Mr.
Qiu joined the Group in April 2004 and had been the general manager
of the notebook business department and the vice president of Scud
Electronics. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Qiu had served as consultant at
Perfect Source Tech (PST) Co., Ltd., as director and vice president of the
Solomon Group, as general manager of Chen-Hsong Machinery Co., Ltd.,
as general manager of Jimmy Hi-Tech Co., Ltd. and as staff manager of
Radio Corporation of America. He has nearly 37 years of experience in the
electronics manufacturing industry. Mr. Qiu graduated from the Mechanical
Engineering Faculty of the Taipei Institute of Industry in Taiwan Province in
1967 and from Chung Yuan Christian University with a Master’s degree in
information technology in 1987.

Huang Yan, aged 30, is the Executive Deputy General Manager of SCUD
(Fujian) Battery Co. Ltd (“Scud Battery”), and is responsible for the overall
operation management of Scud Battery. The main business of Scud Battery
is SCUD own brand products. Ms. Huang joined the Group in February
2001 and has served as the manager of the own brand business division of
Scud Electronics. She has strong knowledge in the management of brand
business, production planning and team building. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Huang had served as an assistant to the General Manager of 2%
#3282 "lin Fujian. Ms. Huang has nearly 8 year's experience in the
business of telecommunication products. Her service in the Group mainly
involves the management of distribution channels, the development of
brand products and team building. Ms. Huang graduated from Fujian Cadet
Academy of Economic Management in 1999 in the specialty of trading.

Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA), aged 32, is the Qualified Accountant and
Company Secretary of the Company. He is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group and is responsible for the overall financial and accounting affairs.
He is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Yeung worked as an auditor in an international
accounting firm. He has more than 10 years of experience in the accounting
field. He has a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and
Accounting. Mr. Yeung joined the Group in September 2005.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of SCUD Group Limited (the
“Company”) presents its annual report and audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its major subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set out
in the consolidated income statements on page 61.

A final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008 of HK$0.02 per
share, amounting to a total final dividend of approximately RMB 18,026,000,
is to be proposed for the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

DONATION

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately RMB1.0 million (2007: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2008 comprised the accumulated profits, other reserves and
share premium of approximately RMB785.3 million (2007: RMB773.9
million).
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Fang Jin (Chairman)
Lin Chao (Vice Chairman)

(reappointed on 30 April 2008)
(reappointed on 30 April 2008)
Guo Quan Zeng (President) (reappointed on 30 April 2008)

Li Hui Qiu (Vice President)

Non-executive Director:
Ho Man

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Heng Kwoo Seng
Wang Jing Zhong
Wang Jian Zhang

According to the requirements of Article 87(1) of the articles of association
of the Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years. Mr. Heng Kwoo Seng, Mr.
Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang will retire at the Company’s
2009 annual general meeting. Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian
Zhang, both being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Board has been informed by Mr. Heng Kwoo Seng that he will not
offer himself for re-election as a Director at the forthcoming annual general
meeting as he intends to retire immediately after the meeting. Mr. Heng has
confirmed that he has no disagreement with the Board and that there is no
matter relating to his retirement that needs to be brought to the attention
of the shareholders of the Company. The Board would like to extend its
gratitude to Mr. Heng for his valuable contribution to the Company in the
past years. The Board expects to appoint a new independent non-executive
Director at the forthcoming AGM and will announce such appointment
and related biographical details of Mr. Heng's replacement pursuant to the
Listing Rules requirements.

SCUD Group Limited ~ REREEFR A A
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Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Lin Chao, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng and Mr. Li Hui Qiu have
entered into service contracts with the Company for a term of three years,
commencing on 21 December 2006 which may only be terminated in
accordance with the provisions of the service contract after the first two
years by either party giving to the other not less than three months’ prior
notice in writing. Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Lin Chao have no salary according to
the services contracts.

There are no service contracts for any of the directors who are nominated
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting which are
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2008, the relevant interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO”), which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO)) or were required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or were required, pursuant to the
relevant provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) relating to securities transactions by
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as

follows:
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Percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital
ordinary shares of the Company
subject to (Note 4)
Number of options granted HAEAT
issued ordinary iR BB R i BEETRAE
Name of Director Capacity shares held BRZ ZBat
EEEB 514 ZERYE EBEREE (Hizt4)
Fang Jin Corporate interest (Note 1) 402,000,000 - 39.33%
Pk DR (MaE 1)
Beneficial interest - 3,500,000 0.34%
Bamtn
Lin Chao Corporate interest (Note 2) 180,000,000 - 17.61%
MR NEER (MaE2)
Beneficial interest - 2,800,000 0.27%
ity did
Guo Quan Zeng Corporate interest (Note 3) 18,000,000 - 1.76%
2R3 NEER (MEE3)
Beneficial interest - 2,450,000 0.24%
B
Li Hui Qiu Beneficial interest - 1,960,000 0.19%
ik fgoy: 4o
Note 1: These shares are directly held by Swift Joy Holdings Limited, whose entire BiaEl - ZERGEAEERERAREERFE 2B

BOIRMATEHE

issued share capital is held by Fang Jin.

Note 2: These shares are directly held by Right Grand Holdings Limited, whose entire Kiix2: ZERMBAERERERARERZIZE  H&2HE
issued share capital is held by Lin Chao. BT BAEREEA -
Note 3: These shares are directly held by Cheer View Holdings Limited, whose entire B3 . ZERGBESERBRAREERFE 2B

BITAAD R FBRIGHFEE -

issued share capital is held by Guo Quan Zeng.

Note 4: As per the provisions of the SFO, we have taken into account the number of Kiait4 - REBEFSFREBABGKOIG - RetEZBE D LK
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2008 when calculating B RBEZZT ) \FH+A=Z+—HBEEITHA
this percentage. NARRNHEE -

BRIAEHEEN  RZTTNF+A=1+—8 " #E
EENHERTRABRBEEZE ZBHEA LN ARG HEE
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations as at 31 ] FEEEE A B 2 (R AR () Ko AR BB AR 1) R ¥ A8 (AT M 2 %k
December 2008. Ao

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives or their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares and underlying

SHARE OPTIONS B

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes, namely Pre-IPO Share RARZEBRIETEID B BB X AMEEATERETE
Option Scheme and Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, are set out in note 32 MERARBEEEBRETS - EHEFBENGEENS
to the consolidated financial statements. wERMIFE32 -
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PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme during the period from 1 January 2008 to 31

(a)

December 2008.

e

Category |:
F8:

Directors

B=%

Fang Jin

ik

Lin Chao

it

Guo Quan Zeng
PR

Li Hui Qiu
Fen

Total directors
EEEG
Category Il:
£-8:

Senior management:
PRERE

Category IlI:
=8

Other staff
HtBT

Total of all categories

FrE R st

Exercise

Date of grant price
BREBH T6E
(HK$)

(B

21.12.2006 2.02
21.12.2006 2.02
21.12.2006 2.02
21.12.2006 2.02
21.12.2006 2.02
21.12.2006 2.02

Outstanding
at 1.1.2008
R-EEN
F-A-B

e RATEE

5,000,000
4,000,000
3,500,000

2,800,000

15,300,000

3,200,000

5,330,000

23,830,000

Granted
during
the year
RER
B

R A BB T M B

@ TREBR-FENF—A

T A=+ —HILBRARARER

fetest 8z &5 -
Exercised Forfeited
during the during
year the year
RER RER
(o4 HE

- 360,000

- 360,000

Annual Report 2008

Expired
during
the year
RER
EL

1,500,000
1,200,000
1,050,000

840,000

4,590,000

960,000

1,491,000

7,041,000

Outstanding

at 31.12.2008
R-ZBENE
tZA=t-A
RATHE

3,500,000
2,800,000
2,450,000

1,960,000

10,710,000

2,240,000

3,479,000

16,429,000

=
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Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules and the terms
and conditions of the Pre-IPO share option scheme, all Options are subject
to the following vesting period:

Period of exercise of the relevant percentage of option
TEBRENRRET DL 2R

From the expiry of the first anniversary of the Listing
Date to the last date of the second anniversary of
the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

B b E AR R B E FTH A
MRSz && B (BEEERX)

From the expiry of the second anniversary of the
Listing Date to the last date of the third anniversary
of the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

B b E AR mAE SR E T H A
Mz REz&E B (BEEERX)

From the expiry of the third anniversary of the Listing
Date to the last date of the fourth anniversary
of the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

B ET R =B RE FTH A
FhRPUEE 2 HE AL (REERRK)

The exercise price is determined by the Directors of the Company and was
fixed at HK$2.02 per share.

POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No options have been granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme as
at 31 December 2008.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share Options” above, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2008 was the Company or any of its
fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or convertible bonds (including bonds) of, the Company or any
other body corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such rights.

SCUD Group Limited ~ REREEFR A A

RIE ETRAMEMERRS) - UERERAFEERER
RSB R R R AR BBHMT : —

Maximum percentage of options exercisahle
ATEEREZES B

30% of the total number of Options granted
ERHEREREZ 30%

30% of the total number of Options granted
ERHEREREZ 30%

40% of the total number of Options granted
ERHERERE 40%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR
As at 31 December 2008, the following persons (other than directors or R-ZEZENF+_A=+—"H U TFAT(HIFEERQF

chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the BFEYARSTHAER) RAAR 2 B HEEIREE
ordinary shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company F MEREEBISE XV 585 2 I 3 9 B 2 BRI A A B
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which B SRR ARRRIREBES LA KDIEI36EHFE
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under 2Bz S SRR -

section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions (Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company): A (RNARSRAMEOC.10B T2 Limk)

Number of
issued ordinary
shares/underlying

Percentage of the
issued share capital
of the Company as at
31 December 2008

shares held R-ZBENF+ZA

Name of shareholder Capacity FECRITEER =+—BEARAT

RERHE 54 RGO EE ERTRAZESL

Swift Joy Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 402,000,000 39.33%

AT AR A A EnEAA
Right Grand Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 180,000,000 17.61%
ERERBR AR EnlEa A

Aria Investment Partners II, L.P. Corporate interest 93,001,246 (Note 1) 9.10%
NRIEE (KaE1)

Calyon Capital Markets Asia B.V. Corporate interest 93,001,246 (Note 1) 9.10%
NGIE 2 (i 1)

Calyon Capital Markets Corporate interest 93,001,246 (Note 1) 9.10%
International SA NEED (K15t 1)

Calyon S.A. Corporate interest 93,001,246 (Note 1) 9.10%
N (1)

CLSA Capital Partners Limited Corporate interest 93,001,246 (Note 1) 9.10%
NAIER (HaF1)

CLSA B.V. Corporate interest 93,001,246 (Note 1) 9.10%
N (1)

CLSA Private Equity Corporate interest 93,001,246 (Note 1) 9.10%
Management Limited AR (Brat1)

Credit Agricole S.A. Corporate interest 93,001,246 (Note 1) 9.10%

R

(Bat 1)
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Name of shareholder

IREREH

Neng Liang Limited

SAS Rue la Boetie

Ma Jie

Ma Yuk Sang
B4

Zheng Wei
2z

Zheng Zhen Jian
HPTAER

SCUD Group Limited

REREHGE AR

Capacity
=27

Beneficial owner
EmnHEAA

Corporate interest
NCIE

A party to an agreement under
s317 of the SFO

RIBE S L EE IRHIE 317 1%
RIM IR HEAIETA T

Beneficial owner (Long)
BEnHEAA(HE)
Beneficial owner (Short)
EalEBAKE)

A party to an agreement under
s317 of the SFO

IRIEREH RS G015 317 15
RN —IA R EIET A

A party to an agreement under
s317 of the SFO

IRIEE 5 R E G015 317 15
RN B —IAH R BIET AT

Number of

issued ordinary
shares/underlying
shares held

B RTEER
HEROHE

93,001,246 (Note 1)
(Bfat 1)

93,001,246 (Note 1)
(Hfat 1)

57,966,000 (Note 2)
(Bfat2)

57,966,000 (Note 2)
(Bat2)
57,966,000 (Note 2)
(Hrat2)

57,966,000 (Note 2)
(Bat2)

57,966,000 (Note 2)
(Hat2)

Percentage of the
issued share capital
of the Company as at
31 December 2008
R-ZBZENF+=A
=t—HGERAR
ERITREAZBDL

9.10%

9.10%

5.67%

5.67%

5.67%

5.67%

5.67%
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Note 1:  Based on the disclosure of interests forms filed with the Stock Exchange, WiaEl . WRIBRBSIES 2SR RS SAS Rue la
SAS Rue la Boetie has 33.3% control over Credit Agricole S.A., which in Boetie ¥ Credit Agricole S.A. ¥ /5 33.3% Z 4% H 4 -
turn has 33.3% control over Calyon S.A., which in turn has 33.3% control Credit Agricole S.A. ¥f Calyon S.A. %% 33.3% 2%l
over Calyon Capital Markets International SA, which in turn has 33.3% 1 Calyon S.A.¥fCalyon Capital Markets International
control over Calyon Capital Markets Asia B.V., which in turn has 33.3% SAYE 5 33.3% 2 1 i # - Calyon Capital Markets
control over CLSA B.V., which in turn has 33.3% control over CLSA Capital International SA ¥ Calyon Capital Markets Asia B.V.
Partners Limited, which in turn has 33.3% control over CLSA Private Equity B33.3%,2 £ #l # - Calyon Capital Markets Asia
Management Limited, which in turn has 1% control over Aria Investment B.V. ¥ CLSA B.V. %/ 33.3% 2 {2 #I|#E 'CLSA B.V. &
Partners II, L.P., which in turn has 33.3% control over Neng Liang Limited. CLSA Capital Partners Limited 4 33.3% 2 {2 &l
As such, each of the above entities is deemed to be interested in the CLSA Capital Partners Limited ¥ CLSA Private Equity
93,001,246 shares held by Neng Liang Limited under the SFO. Management Limited # & 33.3% 2 ¥ #i| #& + CLSA

Private Equity Management Limited%fAria Investment
Partners II, L.P.# & 1% 2 Y2 | # - Aria Investment
Partners II, L.P.¥fNeng Liang Limited % 533.3% 2 1
HliE o Bt - RIBEFHFRAEGKY - P EREE
B AR AR Neng Liang Limited 45 2 93,001,246

IR MR R o
Note 2: Ma Jie, Ma Yuk Sang, Zheng Wei and Zheng Zhen Jian are parties to an K2 BA - B4 BELREEERAREESNAEKE
agreement under section 317 of the SFO and hence are deemed to be BIEIL7IERT LB —IBIBAMET A - AR AR
interested in the Shares held by each other. B BERRDPHEAER o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, the Company had not BLAEREEI RZEEN\F+_A=1+—H &Q
been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief executive of the A EER TR AT (LIERRREEIESITHRAL)
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying RAR B SABRE I (D P HE B IR IR HH RIS 1§05
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company XVEBEE 2 K 3D BB Z G X BRIARBIKEE @ si/BRR AR
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of the Part XV of the SFO, or which RNERIEES RS G015 336 17 & 2 idtrflt 2 #

were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under WHRAE ©

section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TEER

Report for the corporate governance practice adopted by the Company is set BEARNGMRAZ CEERBRIHESEHNAFTR
out on page 48 to 58 of this annual report. FASBEZEFEH8HE ©

REMUNERATIONS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE EERIVBESHFNES2HME

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the total remunerations of the REEZTTNF+A=T—HILFE  EFKAN
Directors and the five highest paid employees are set out in note 8 to the wEFeEE 2 BB GRS MIEHRENES -
consolidated financial statements.

The Company has established an audit committee, a nomination committee, ARRERUBZEES - IRRZET - FWZEGM
a remuneration committee and an executive committee. WITEEE -
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The primary duties of the audit committee are mainly to review the material
investment, capital operation and material financial system of the Company,
to review the accounting policy, financial position and financial reporting
procedures of the Company, to communicate with the external audit firm,
to assess the performance of internal financial and audit personnel, and to
assess the internal control of the Company. At present, the audit committee
of the Company consists of four members who are Mr. Heng Kwoo Seng, Mr.
Wang Jing Zhong, Mr. Wang Jian Zhang and Mr. Ho Man.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The primary duties of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee are mainly to study and formulate the criteria of selection and
the remuneration policy of the Directors and the senior management
of the Company, to review candidates for the Directors and the senior
management of the Company, and to review the human resources
development and the utilisation policy of the Company. At present, the
nomination committee and the remuneration committee each consists of
three members who are Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Heng Kwoo Seng and Mr. Wang
Jing Zhong.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The primary duties of the executive committee are mainly to review and
formulate the strategic positioning and development plans of the Company,
to review and formulate strategies for market development and operation,
to monitor operational and financial performance of assets and control
risks, and to review the strategies of the Company on its material projects,
business expansion, asset restructuring and operations. At present, the
executive committee of the Company consists of thirteen members who are
Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Lin Chao, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng, Mr. Li Hui Qiu, Mr. Yeung
Mun Tai, Mr. Jiang Zhi Cheng, Mr. Pan Liang Chun, Ms. Zheng Na, Mr.
Zhou Xuan Xiang, Mr. Feng Ming Jhu, Mr. Huang Sheng Fen, Ms. Huang
Yan and Mr. Qiu Jun Ming.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Although there are no restrictions over the grant of pre-emptive rights under
the laws of Cayman Islands, no pre-emptive rights have been granted under
the articles of association of the Company.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The top five and the largest customers of the Group represent approximately
22.9% and 6.8% of the Group’s total sales of the year respectively.

The top five and the largest suppliers of the Group represent approximately
36.6% and 13.5% of the Group’s total purchases of the year respectively.

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of a Director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company) has equity interests
in the top five customers and suppliers of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and the Group had connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

On 12 December 2007, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “CLT Agreement”) with Mr. Ma Yuk Sang (the “Vendor”)
for the acquisition of Chaolitong Technology Company Limited (“CLTT")
and the principal operating assets of Chaolitong Electronics Company
Limited (“CLTE”) through Joint Smart Holdings Limited (the “Purchaser”),
a company indirectly held by the Company as to 70% and by the Vendor as
to 30%. As a result of the Vendor’s interest in the Purchaser, this acquisition
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company. The aggregate
consideration for this transaction is up to approximately RMB245.0 million
depending on fulfilment of profit targets. The purposes of this transaction,
amongst others, are to consolidate the Group’s market share by acquiring
the principal operating assets of one of the Group’s major competitor, as
well as complementing the Group’s existing sales network in the PRC. On
7 June 2008, the Company received confirmation of receipt of RMB91.0
million from the Vendor as part of the consideration pursuant to the CLT
Agreement. On 7 September 2008, the Company allotted and issued 30
million shares to the Vendor as part of the consideration pursuant to the CLT
Agreement. Further details on this transaction are set out in the Company’s
circular to Shareholders dated 11 January 2008 and the Company’s
announcement dated 9 June 2008 and 7 September 2008.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the connected transaction and continuing connected transactions set
out herein and in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, and
have confirmed that, during the year ended 31 December 2008, such
transactions were entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(3) inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have also confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions:—

(1) have been approved by the Board of the Company;

(2)  were entered into at amounts consistent with the pricing policies of
the Company;

(3)  have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

(4)  have not exceeded the cap disclosed in previous announcements.

Further details of the transactions and relationships of the connected parties
are also set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 11 December 2006, the
Stock Exchange has granted the Company a waiver from compliance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the land lease agreement (the “Lease
Agreement”) with Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (“Scud Stock”) dated 20
June 2004, which has been entered into for the purpose of leasing factory
premises for production use, and the purchase agreement (the “Purchase
Agreement”) with Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”)
and Fujian Youtong Enterprises Limited (“Fujian Youtong”) dated 1 August
2006 for the purpose of having a steady source of raw materials and plastic
moulds at a reasonable price.
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The name of and the relationship with connected companies are as follows: BHREQAABEELBERAT
Name Relationship

=L 7

Fang Jin Director

ok o2

Lin Chao Director

PRiE =

Guo Quan Zeng Director

EiIE S =

Scud Electronics A wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by the Company with Fang Jin
RERETF and Lin Chao being common directors

e EMBAKRESNARARRZ2EMNE AR

Scud Stock A company with Fang Jin, Lin Chao and Guo Quan Zeng
REBRA (D being common directors and shareholders
e MBRIRERARNEERRENAATREEZENE QA

Chaolitong Electronic Company Limited Mr. Ma Jie and Mr. Zheng Wei are directors and shareholders of both CLTE and CLTT
(“CLTE")

BOBEBEFHERAIA AL EREE S E R NBETF BB ES KRR
(r8hmEF])

Chaolitong Technology Company Limited A 70% owned subsidiary indirectly held by the Company with Mr. Ma Jie and Mr. Zheng Wei

(“CLTT") being directors of both CLTE and CLTT
BRI BER AR SAGERSRAERBIBE T RB BN HEREENAQT
(TEB@RHR]) R #AE 70% M B Q]

Scud Electronics and Scud Stock has also entered into a separate lease RERRE TERERBRODMAEER AW EELAEE
agreement (the “New Lease Agreement”) dated 15 November 2007 for the TRV ERA-—EELFE+—ATHANELHE
lease of office premises for administrative use for the Group for a term of Ema((HEERZ])  HERA=F FEHSAA
3 years. The annual rental was RMB1,378,368. Further details of the New R#1,378368 7T « #BE AN ME —FeFBHNALR
Lease Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 15 AIBHAZST L+ —ATHRENQE - FHHERZ
November 2007. The New Lease Agreement remained effective throughout REE-_ZTZNF+-_A=Z+—HIEFERAHZTER
the year ended 31 December 2008 and its tenure ending on 15 November EFPR T —ZTF+—A+HAER

2010.
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On 17 January 2008, CLTE and CLTT entered into a lease agreement (“CLT
Lease Agreement”) whereby CLTT will lease the factory and dormitory
premises from CLTE in Shenzhen. The Vendor is a connected person of the
Company by way of its 30% interest in the Purchaser. As of 2 June 2008
whereby the Company received all relevant approvals required from Chinese
regulators in relation to the CLT Agreement, CLTT became an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the CLT Lease Agreement
therefore constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the Company
since the shareholders of CLTE are connected persons pursuant to Rule
14A.11(4)(a) of the Listing Rules. The lease was for an initial period of 3
years from 17 January 2008 to 16 January 2011, with an agreed annual
rental of RMB3,600,000. Further details of the CLT Lease Agreement are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 17 January 2008.

The details on annual caps and actual amount incurred for the above
continuing connected transactions for 2008 and 2009 are as follows:

CLT Lease Agreement BhBHE R
Lease Agreement HE W=
New Lease Agreement FHEwE

Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Lin Chao are executive directors of the Company
who were also the directors of Fujian Youtong in the previous year. On 28
October 2007, Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Lin Chao ceased to act as directors of
Fujian Youtong and hence Fujian Youtong ceased to be a related party since
28 October 2007.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as the transactions referred in the section “Connected Transactions”
above, no Directors has direct or indirect material interests in any material
contracts or contracts of significance entered into by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries at any time during the year.
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Actual amount Annual cap
incurred for the year

for the year ended ending
31 December 2008 31 December 2009
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(AR®) (AR®)
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1,378,368 1,400,000
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed interest in any of the Company’s listed securities for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers
such directors to be independent in accordance with each and every
guideline set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No significant subsequent event occurred after the balance sheet date.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Moore
Stephens Certified Public Accountants since 21 December 2007. A
resolution will be proposed regarding the reappointment of Moore Stephens
Certified Public Accountants as the auditors of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By the order of the Board

>: §
FANG JIN
Chairman

25 March 2009
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Group is committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level of
corporate governance standards and continuously reviews and improves our
corporate governance and internal controls practices. Set out below are the
principles of corporate governance as adopted by the Company during the
financial year under review.

DISTINCT ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEQ”)
During the period from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2008, Mr. Fang

Jin served as the Chairman of the Board and was responsible for leading
the Board in establishing and monitoring the implementation of strategies
and plans to create values for shareholders. Mr. Guo Quan Zeng served as
the President of the Group and was responsible for managing the overall
business operations of the Group, proposing strategies to the Board and
the effective implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by the
Board, effectively carrying out the role of a CEO.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2008, there were eight members on the Board,
which are the Chairman, the three other Executive Directors, one Non-
executive Director (“NED”) and three Independent Non-executive Directors
(“INEDs”).

The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially interfere with
the exercise of their independent judgments. The Board considered that
each of the INEDs brings his own relevant expertise to the Board and its
deliberations.

None of the INEDs has any business or financial interests with the Group nor
has any relationship with other directors. Each of the INEDs confirmed their
respective independences to the Group.

Save for their business relationships as a result of their respective
directorships in the Company, there are no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among members of the Board.
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The Board met regularly during the year on an ad hoc basis as required
by business needs. The Board’s primary purpose is to set and review the
overall strategic development of the Group and to oversee the achievement
of the plans to enhance shareholders’ value. Daily operational decisions are
delegated to the Executive Directors and the senior management. The Board
met 5 times during the year 2008 and the Directors’ attendance is shown in
the table on page 54. The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Group during the year.

Mr. Heng Kwoo Seng, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang
will retire at the Company’s 2009 annual general meeting. Mr. Wang Jing
Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang, both being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election in the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Board has
been informed by Mr. Heng Kwoo Seng that he will not offer for re-election
as Director at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Board expects
to appoint a new independent non-executive Director at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Directors are independent from each other.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference as suggested under the Code of Best Practice set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and adopted with reference to “A
Guide for Effective Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. During the year ended 31 December
2008, the Audit Committee comprises Mr. Heng Kwoo Seng, Mr. Wang
Jing Zhong, Mr. Wang Jian Zhang and Mr. Ho Man, a majority of whom
are INEDs. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Heng Kwoo Seng.
Each member can bring to the Audit Committee his valuable experience
in reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control and
financial issues of the Group who among themselves possess a wealth
of management experience in the accounting profession or commercial
sectors. The Audit Committee was established on 3 December 2006 and
has held 2 meetings during the year 2008 and the relevant Directors
attendance is shown on page 54.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

to review the half-year and annual financial statements of the Group
before they are submitted to the Board for approval;

to make recommendations to the Board on, the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors, and approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors, and
any questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditors;

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance

with applicable standards;

to review the Group’s financial controls, internal controls and risk
management systems;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practice;

to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function;
and

to review the terms and conditions of connected transactions of the
Group.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has carried out the
following:

(a)

Financial Statements

The Audit Committee met with the Chief financial officer and other
senior management of the Group to review the interim report and
annual report of the Group prior to recommending the financial
statements to the Board for approval. The Audit Committee has
considered and discussed the reports with the management, the
Group’s internal department and external auditors, with a view of
ensuring that the Group’s consolidated financial statements were
prepared in accordance with the International Accounting Standards
and also reviewed the terms and conditions of connected transactions
of the Group.

SCUD Group Limited
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External Auditors

The Audit Committee reviewed and monitored the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process. The Audit Committee also made recommendations to the
Board on the continuation of the appointment and resignation of
Moore Stephens Certified Public Accountants (“Moore Stephens”), as
the Group’s external auditors.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control

The Audit Committee assisted the Board in meeting its responsibilities
for maintaining an effective system of internal control. It conducted
a review of the process by which the Group evaluated its control
environment and risk assessment process, and the way in which
business and control risks were managed. The Audit Committee
also discussed with the internal audit department of the Group the
work plan for their audits on the Group together with their resource
requirements to ensure the effectiveness of internal controls in the
Group’s business operations.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (“Remuneration

Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and has held 1 meeting during the year

2008. The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Heng
Kwoo Seng and Mr. Wang Jing Zhong. The Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is Mr. Fang Jin. Its main duties are summarized as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
as well as a formal and transparent procedure for developing such
remuneration policies;

to determine the specific remuneration packages of all Executive
Directors, senior management and Non-executive Directors; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in

deciding his own remuneration.
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In order to attract, retain, and motivate executives and key employees
serving the Group, the Company has adopted a share option scheme in
December 2006. Such incentive schemes enable the eligible persons
to obtain an ownership interest in the Company and thus to reward the
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

Details of the amount of Directors emoluments are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements and details of the 2008 share option
scheme are set out in note 32.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and has held 1 meeting during the
year 2008. The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Heng
Kwoo Seng and Mr. Wang Jing Zhong. The Chairman of the Nomination
Committee is Mr. Fang Jin. The Nomination Committee selects and
recommends appropriate candidates, based on his or her prior experience
and qualifications, to the Board on the appointment of Directors and the
senior management of the Group. The main duties of the Nomination
Committee are as follows:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
to make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
change;

(i) to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the qualifications
of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

(iii)  to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors
to determine their eligibility; and

(iv)  to review and assess the adequacy of the corporate governance
guidelines of the Company and to recommend any proposed changes
to the Board for approval.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE HITZEES
The Company established an executive committee (“Executive Committee”) ARBRZZEERNFHNA=ZHRLATZES ([WITE
on 3 April 2006 and has held 1 meeting during the year 2008. The Executive Bg]) RTZEGR T NFRE|ITIANGZH - H

Committee comprises Mr. Guo Quan Zeng, Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Lin Chao, Mr. TZEEHIRIE 5‘1‘; e S MEBEA C el
Li Hui Qiu, Mr. Yeung Mun Tai, Mr. Jiang Zhi Cheng, Mr. Pan Liang Chun, S MR E IR E  BRELE B
Ms. Zheng Na, Mr. Zhou Xuan Xiang, Mr. Feng Ming Jhu, Mr. Huang Sheng + - FEERELAE - /,%HH’F’I?EE CEERSE - Eiat
Fen, Ms. Huang Yan and Mr. Qiu Jun Ming. The Chairman of the Executive NMIBERAST BN - ITEEENER A RILEAE -
Committee is Mr. Guo Quan Zeng. lts duties include mainly the following: EREFTEREATEE

(i)  recommending objectives and strategy for the Group in the (i) MUAEAEERR BF - EERHMOBRENFZD
development of its business, having regard to the interests of its BoOMALSEEZEESSES EANBEZEER
shareholders, customers, employees and other stakeholders; B s

(i)  agreeing on policy guidelines for business divisions based on (i REBEEMENSEBERBIRTEEB S HHEERE
approved group strategy; 3l

(i) ensuring compliance with relevant legislation and regulations; and (i) FRETEEEOILEE &
(iv) examining all trade investments, divestments and major capital (V) BEMBEEIRE BRELERTIEEAHATE

expenditure proposals and the recommendation to the Board of those FEUARESSEREABREE NS EE IR
which, in a group context, are material either by nature or cost. TEBERMEEER -

The following table summaries the attendance of individual Director and TR ENEEREEERER S N\ENLEE
committee member in 2008. oo
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Meeting attended/held in 2008
R-BENFHE SBITHER

Audit
Board Committee 2008 AGM
—BEN\ERR
EEg BEREEY BAERE
Number of meetings held during the year FREITHSEREE 5 2 1
Executive Directors: HITES .
Fang Jin Dakia 5/5 N/A i R 1/1
Lin Chao R 5/5 N/A TE A 0/1
Guo Quan Zeng 2R 1 5/5 N/A N 0/1
Li Hui Qiu B3 E 5/5 N/A i A 0/1
Non-executive Director: FHITESE !
Ho Man (B 4/5 2/2 0/1
Independent Non-executive Director: BYPITES :
Heng Kwoo Seng BeaE 4/5 2/2 0/1
Wang Jing Zhong FEAR 4/5 2/2 0/1
Wang Jian Zhang TiEE 4/5 2/2 0/1
Average attendance rate TG E = 90% 100% 13%
LOOKING FORWARD B2

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards on REBFEET BRI HECEETRTE  EFSTIR
a regularly basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary actions IFTHRITE - AERETFH RS AN EEATERT

to ensure the compliance with the provisions of the Code on Corporate BRI -
Governance Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
INDEPENDENCE INFORMATION B HHER

ARRIBEWBISBIUIFATESTNFRE LS NHER
T ARARBA/RELWRAFIISEMEM SRR
5l BRHEEHABIAL -

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual confirmation
of his independence, and the Company considers such directors to be
independent in accordance with each and every guideline set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

SCUD Group Limited  RERREBEARA A
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF THE LISTING RULES

During the year 2008, each of Mr. Ho Man, Mr. Heng Kwoo Seng and Mr.
Wang Jian Zhang confirmed they would continue as Directors. However,
their terms of appointment were not formalized due to an administrative
oversight. For Mr. Ho Man and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang, their respective
appointments have been renewed on 25 March 2009 for a term up to and
including the date of the Company’s 2010 annual general meeting. As Mr.
Heng intends to retire after the upcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, the Company and Mr. Heng will not be formalising the terms of
his appointment for the period prior to his resignation.

In the opinion of the Directors, save for the above deviation from provision
A.4.1 of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices regarding non-
executive directors to be appointed for specific terms, the Company has
complied with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices, as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2008.

To achieve high corporate governance standards and enhance corporate
performance and accountability, the Company has established an internal
audit department to ensure the Group maintains a sound and effective
system of internal controls. The internal control system is designed to
provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement or loss; to
manage the risk of system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the
Group’s objectives. In addition to safeguarding the Group’s assets, it also
ensures the maintenance of proper accounting records and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company had adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers” as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
as the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors (the
“Code”). Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirmed that all
Directors have complied with the required standard as set out in the Code.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditors, including whether such
non-audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect
on the Company. During the year under review, the Group is required to
pay approximately RMB1.7 million to Moore Stephens and approximately
RMBO0.4 million to the PRC auditors for their audit services.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the accounts and the responsibilities of the
external auditors to the shareholders are set out on page 59 to 60.

The continuing development and present scale of the Group were benefited
from the trust and support of the stakeholders. We have been dedicating
efforts not only to maximize the present value of the Company but also
seeking to maximize the interest and return for all parties so as to enhance
a harmonious development and a victorious collaboration in the long run.

STAKEHOLDERS

1. Investors

The Group has always paid much attention to communication and
interaction with investors, and continued to improve communication
channels with shareholders and investors, so as to enhance
governance transparency. The Group’s management will regularly
come to Hong Kong to meet investors, and proactively announce the
latest information and business development plans. Since its listing
in December 2006, the management has been attending press
conferences and investors’ briefings held in Hong Kong during the
announcement periods of annual and interim results, and report the
latest business situation and development strategies of the Group.
During the year under review, we have held individual investors’
meetings and telephone conferences with various institutional
investors and fund managers. Furthermore, the Group has been
in strict compliance with listing requirements; to provide market
participants and regulators with timely, accurate, complete and
reliable information of the Company, so that investors may make the
best decision.

2. Consumers

Product Safety

In recent years, there have been mobile phone explosion incidents
in the PRC, thus caused consumers’ attention towards safety issues
of mobile phone batteries. Our suppliers are famous manufactures
in the industry, they have implemented strict quality control like ISO,
and the Group has also set high standards for products provided
by them, so as to meet safety requirements. With our product
testing centres, we administer stages of tests including crash, high-
temperature, dampen and long-period recharging on our product. We
also invest resources in product R&D to development more reliable
products.

SCUD Group Limited ~ REREEFR A A
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In December 2007, the “SCUD ¥ E R ” brand’s Li-ion battery was
awarded Certificate of Exemption from Government Inspection
by the General Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection
and Quarantine of PRC. The Group is the first and only domestic
manufacturer of Li-ion batteries that has been awarded such
Certificate of Exemption, proving that the products of the Group have
passed the stringent requirements on quality control and safety set by
relevant government authorities.

Employees

Occupational Safety

The Group has focused on factory production safety, strived to
enhance employees’ safety knowledge and training, and increased
factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols, so as to ensure
the free flow of fire passages and the adequacy of water for fire
prevention. In addition, the Group has regularly held fire exercises,
increased investments in fire prevention facilities in factories, so as to
ensure the sufficiency of fire prevention equipments and facilities.

The Group has proactively taken and implemented various measures,
including:

(i) increase factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols
(once a week), fix problems in a timely manner, so as to ensure
the free flow of fire passages and the adequacy of water for fire
prevention;

(i) regularly (additional if necessary) hold safety seminar and
training for employees, especially for new staff, strive to
enhance their hazard prevention and safety awareness;

(iii)  two or more large scale fire exercises in each year, and set May
31 the fire exercise day of the Company, and conduct general
safety checks and fire exercises on such days;

(iv) enhance factory management and divide it into safety
responsibility districts, appoint safety examiners at the
workshops, with routine patrols, and eliminate potential
problems in a timely manner;

(v)  improve and formulate storage, safe keeping, transportation
and processing procedures for flammables, and provide
training for staff frequently in contact in such flammables;
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(vi) increase investments in fire prevention facilities in new
factories, with reasonably established fire prevention districts
and ensure the sufficiency of facilities.

Protection of Employees’ Legal Rights

The Group has been promoting and exercising a fair and non-
discriminative employment policy. Employees are employed on
contract basis and employment contracts were signed based on
a fair and voluntary principle, with requirements with regard to
contract term, work content, work remuneration, social insurance,
and working hour, among others. The rights and obligations of the
employer and employee are defined clearly by legal representation.

We also strictly comply with the relevant laws and regulations in
relation to national social insurance to set up insurance scheme for
basic aged caring, medical, injuries at work, unemployment and
birth-giving for employees and cover the various insurance expenses.
Meanwhile, to further protect the interests of individual employees,
the Company registered for a commercial accident insurance scheme
for all employees. The Group implemented the Labor Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China since 1 January 2008, established
a labor union. We hold an employees’ meeting every two weeks, in
support of construction and development of a harmonious and stable
employee and employer relationship.

Community

Earthquake in Sichuan

We have always emphasized a harmonious relationship between
people and encourage them to love and care each other. On 12
May 2008, a level 8 earthquake broke out in Wenchuan County in
Sichuan Province, the pain suffered by the victims and the difficulties
they faced moved the heart of each employee at SCUD. We donated
approximately RMB1,000,000 in cash and in kind through China Red
Cross to help the victims in Sichuan, so as to make our contribution
for the victims.

Environmental Protection

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has always put emphasis in
supporting environmental protection and is one of the environmental
friendly enterprises. We strictly control the production procedures
and reduce waste generation. The small amount of waste generated
during the packaging process is sorted and the recyclable portions
are delivered to qualified recycling plants for treatment.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

B AR S

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SCUD GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SCUD Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to 139, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

MOORE STEPHENS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

905 Silvercord, Tower 2 %
30 Canton Road WY,

Tsimshatsui
Kowloon Bﬁ
Hong Kong ==
Tel : (852) 2375 3180
el :
Fax:(852) 23753828  F &

E-mail : ms@ms.com.hk BEt
www.ms.com.hk FIT B
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2008 and of
the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Moore Stephens
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
25 March 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

NG

Year ended 31 December 2008 #HZE=—ZTN\F+-A=+—HIFE

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt ARET T AREFIT

Turnover B 4 1,252,693 960,921
Cost of sales SHE R A (988,853) (717,412)
Gross profit EF 263,840 243,509
Other revenue E iz 5 19,206 28,718
Selling and distribution expenses SHE K SHRAR (43,398) (29,116)
Administrative expenses TR (90,175) (59,700)
Other operating expenses Hihie g (6,286) (393)
Profit from operations KRR 6 143,187 183,018
Losses from fire NSHRR 9 - (164,581)
Finance costs REE R AR 10 (830) (2,491)
Profit before taxation R A % A 142,357 15,946
Taxation Gzl 11 (72) (429)
Profit for the year REERA 142,285 15,517
Attributable to: LU FE4Y -

Equity holders of the Company AAEE=FTA A 131,954 15,513

Minority interests DER R e 10,331 4

142,285 15,517

Dividends BRE 12 18,026 37,789
Earnings per share BREF

— basic (RMB cents) —ER(ARES) 13 13.18 1.58

— diluted (RMB cents) —#E (AR%E D) 13 13.01 1.58




Consolidated Balance Sheet
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31 December 2008 HK=-ZTN\F+-—A=+—H

62

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HizE ARETT AREFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MR 14 276,186 168,195
Prepaid lease payments — non-current FENEERE—FERB
portion 2B 15 11,985 12,243
Intangible assets B EE 16 224,983 3,109
Deferred tax assets FEEFRIEE B 17 1,675 1,675
514,829 185,222
Current assets REEE
Due from a related party FEUN B BEE A L FIE 18 938 1,126
Inventories FE 19 178,025 149,114
Trade and notes receivables EUE 5508 & eI =% 20 318,781 191,499
Prepaid lease payments — current AN TRERIE — R E
portion 7B 15 258 258
Prepayments, deposits and other TENFIE - BE Rk
receivables Hibpels ziiE 21 61,466 125,590
Current tax recoverable AT [e] BN ERFR IE 6,450 2,403
Pledged bank deposits BEEBIRITIER 22 105,942 29,375
Bank balances and cash RITHERNIRE 23 351,176 468,483
1,023,036 967,848
Current liabilities FREEE
Due to a related party FEREREALTRIA 24 3,877 =
Trade and notes payables FERTE 5 708 K BN iR 25 257,642 133,408
Provision for warranty EnREEHS 26 3,683 2,225
Other payables, receipts in advance and HAbETHIE - FEWEIE
accrued charges NMEstE R 27 44,184 30,735
Bank loans — current portion SRITER—mEBo 28 7,279 13,444
316,665 179,812
Net current assets mENEEFE 706,371 788,036
Total assets less current liabilities EEERRSAR 1,221,200 973,258

SCUD Group Limited REBREBER QA




Consolidated Balance Sheet
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31 December 2008 R=ZEEN\F+=-A=+—H

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HizE ARETT AREETIT
Capital and reserves EAXREE
Share capital A& 29 102,134 99,503
Reserves (Bt 1,035,710 872,786
Equity attributable to AATERFTEA
equity holders of the Company FE(ERER 1,137,844 972,289
Minority interests DERRES 82,838 7
Total equity HRERS 1,220,682 972,296
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Bank loans — non-current portion RITER—FERBH S 28 518 962
Total equity and non-current liabilities BEZNERBERS 1,221,200 973,258
D)
z
FANG JIN LIN CHAO
kA i
Director Director
Ea EFE




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GARNEDS

For the year ended 31 December 2008  &f;
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Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) applicable to foreign investment enterprises and the Articles of
Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company, these PRC subsidiaries
are required to maintain three statutory reserves, namely a statutory reserve
fund, an enterprise expansion fund and a staff welfare and incentive
bonus fund which are non-distributable. Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co.,
Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”), Scud (Fujian) Battery Co., Ltd. (“Scud Battery”),
Scud Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Scud Shenzhen”) and Chaolitong
Technology Company Limited (“Chaolitong Technology”) are required to
transfer 10% of their respective profit after taxation as reported in the PRC
statutory financial statements to the statutory reserve fund until the balance
reaches 50% of their respective registered capital.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Scud Electronics, Scud Battery,
Scud Shenzhen and Chaolitong Technology, they are also required to make
appropriation from their respective profit after taxation as reported in the
PRC statutory financial statements to the enterprise expansion fund at rates
determined by their respective boards of directors. The statutory reserve
fund may be used to make up prior year losses incurred and, with the
approval from the relevant government authorities, to increase capital for
expansion of production of Scud Electronics, Scud Battery, Scud Shenzhen
and Chaolitong Technology. The enterprises expansion fund, subject to
the approval by the relevant government authorities, may also be used to
increase capital of Scud Electronics, Scud Battery, Scud Shenzhen and
Chaolitong Technology.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the aggregate
amount of the paid-in capital of subsidiaries acquired plus the consideration
received by the Company pursuant to the Group Reorganisation in
preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=ZTZT/\F+-A=+—HILFE

2008 2007
—EBENE —ETLE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HizE AR¥T T AREETIT
Cash flows from operating activities REFTHMEBRERE
Profit before taxation R A% A& A 142,357 15,946
Adjustments for: FEIER -
Losses from fire NEHRR - 164,581
Amortisation of intangible assets ER B 5,383 247
Interest income SN N (4,705) (12,493)
Depreciation e 50,300 21,383
Equity-settled share-based payments LS AEE 2 AR S 308 2,938 5,812
Finance costs BhE R AR 830 2491
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE « BE M&E
plant and equipment ELEE - Eo8
Operating lease rental in respect of HEEMHEREN
prepaid lease payments Fdevizhed 258 257
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIZARE 16,772 318
Provision/(release of provision) for warranty = SIRIEEE SR,/ (B R @) 1,458 (347)
Gain on disposal of short term investment HEREBRERNE - (7,663)
Operating profit before changes Rt EESEBFIH
in working capital R 215,591 191,485
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from
a related party FEUR B RAE A T ZIER L (3Eh0) 188 (166)
Increase in inventories FEh (11,404) (54,206)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and EIE 5508 & B 1%
notes receivables (), wd (141,050) 36,371
Decrease in prepayments, deposits FERRIE « e REAM
and other receivables FEWSRIE R 61,120 346
Increase in trade and notes payables FESTE 5 308 K FE S AR 124,234 38,607
Increase/(decrease) in other payables, E M FE - TAREIER
receipts in advance and accrued charges FEETB A CRd) 13,449 (31,503)
Cash generated from operations REKLEEEHIRS 262,128 180,934
Interest paid BEFE (830) (2,491)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid B B SEFTSH (4,119) (5,805)
Provision on reconstruction costs of rented & AN B EFRE WD
premises being damaged in the fire BEN B - (8,285)
Losses on inventory FEEX - (199,394)
Receipts from sale of scrap
materials damaged & BB AR YR TS 508 - 1,066
Compensation received from the insurers NI 9 Gl g - 52,490
Net cash generated from operating activities REKETENELSEA 257,179 18,515
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE=TT/\F+-A=+—HILFE

2008 2007
—EENE ZEELF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HizE AR¥TR AREETIT
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHNREEE
Payments to acquire short term investment  B& A8 ER% & 718 - (98,500)
Receipts from disposal of short term
investment HEE IR EEHIE - 106,163
Interest received BEUFE 4,705 12,493
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE — AT B A A 30 (127,607) -
Payment of lease premiums HEHEFIE - (376)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged
bank deposits BEHEMIRITER L), R (76,567) 94,670
Payments to acquire property, plant and BEWE - WEREERIE
equipment (153,190) (120,995)
Payments to acquire intangible assets BAEFEERE (80) (1,549)
Capital contribution from minority interest KA DHAR R ESE ARE R 11,169 =
Net cash used in investing activities ARKREETBSNEESFEE (341,570) (8,094)
Cash flows from financing activities REMEITBNEESRE
Share capital paid by a minority interest DA% R P R% AR - 3
Dividends paid BETRE (17,663) (19,211)
New bank loans FERITER 15,335 13,000
Advance from/(repayment to) related parties A1/ BE A T2 GER) 3,877 (2,354)
Proceeds from issue of shares BT FT1S 5K - 78,480
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (21,944) (76,362)
Share issue expenses BITRM X - (2,896)
Net cash used in financing activities ARBEIBSNRSFE (20,395) (9,340)
(Decrease)/increase in cash ReRFELEEER
and cash equivalents (Ri2) 0 (104,786) 1,081
Cash and cash equivalents at FHNBREeRRESEEEE
beginning of year 468,483 486,937
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXSEHNTE (12,521) (19,535)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRASCRASEEEA 351,176 468,483
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEEEER I
Bank balances and cash RITHEB RIS 351,176 468,483
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68

General

— R

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands on 20 July 2006 as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares have been listed on the Mainboard
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 21 December
2006. The addresses of the registered office and principal places of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate data section
on page 4.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Chinese
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are the manufacture and
sale of rechargeable battery packs and related accessories for mobile
phones, notebook computers, digital cameras and other electrical
appliances.

Basis of presentation of financial statements

RRARZBERFLA T RERS/HEEM
RILRER Rz ETERRR  ERHER-F
ERFTA-T—HE REEHARZHMA
RABERLT - NRARMEMMRELERETEZL
FEHEEIA REN L 4B RFER —H ©

SAPBREARDANNEEEARE (AR
G ADELIII

ARABNEREBHIREZER - NRAIHKEA
AEIEN=RHEBHEF - HHEE  FLAE
R EMEFAMAAZ —ATREEMNE  £E
RN AR 2 EERIHE -

MBHRREIINEE

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2008 have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The principal accounting policies and methods of
computation used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 are consistent with
those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007, except for the adoption of the new and
revised IFRSs as explained in note 3b) below.

SCUD Group Limited REBREBER QA

HE_TZ)/\F+A=+—RHIEFENGEH
BHRRIIZRE LKA EPIRE (R ATFEFE
ME T TARIN)  1eoh - MBHRRBER
BEBMERXZMBRRAES EmRA(T £
FAD RERBRAREPIAERRERTE - mEE
E-ZTN\F+-_A=1T—HILFENRAHE
BREMABNEIBEFTBRLAETENREE
“EELF T A= T HIEFERNGS MR
RFTERANE — B T XPIRE3b) TR R AT
R AE AT BB B 5 ¥R 5 2E R O SRR R RR SN




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SR RMIEE

31 December 2008 HR-ZEZN\E+_-_A=+—H

3. Significant accounting policies

3. FEEFHE

a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual IFRSs,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and
Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (the “IFRIC”) of the IASB.

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting
Standards

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of
the previous financial year except as follows:

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs
and IFRIC interpretations for the current year’s financial
statements which are effective for accounting periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2008. Except for in
certain cases, giving rise to the new and revised accounting
policies and additional disclosures, the adoption of these new
interpretations and amendments has had no effect on these
financial statements.

IAS 39 and IFRS 7
(Amendments)

Amendments to IAS 39 Financial
Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement and
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Reclassification of
Financial Assets

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

IFRIC 14 IAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their interaction

The principal effects of adopting those new and revised IFRSs
are as follows:

Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments — Recognition
and Measurement and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Reclassification of Financial Assets

The amendments to IAS 39 permit an entity to reclassify a non-
derivative financial asset classified as held for trading, other
than a financial asset designated by an entity as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition, out of the fair
value through profit or loss category if the financial asset is no
longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the
near term, if specified criteria are met.

a)

BHRRH
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

b)

SCUD Group Limited

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting
Standards (Continued)

A debt instrument that would have met the definition of loans
and receivables (if it had not been required to be classified
as held for trading at initial recognition) may be classified out
of the fair value through profit or loss category or (if it had not
been designated as available for sale) may be classified out
of the available-for-sale category to the loans and receivables
category if the entity has the intention and ability to hold it for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

In rare circumstances, financial assets that are not eligible
for classification as loans and receivables may be transferred
from the held-for-trading category to the available-for-sale
category or to the held to maturity category (in the case of a
debt instrument), if the financial asset is no longer held for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

The financial asset shall be reclassified at its fair value on
the date of reclassification and the fair value of the financial
asset on the date of reclassification becomes its new cost or
amortised cost, as applicable. The amendments to IFRS 7
require extensive disclosures of any financial asset reclassified
in the situations described above. The amendments are
effective from 1 July 2008.

As the Group has not reclassified any of its financial
instruments, the amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or results of operations of the Group .

IFRIC 11 /FRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions
IFRIC 11 requires arrangements whereby an employee is
granted rights to the Group equity instruments to be accounted
for as an equity-settled scheme, even if the Group buys the
instruments from another party, or the shareholders provide
the equity instruments needed. As the Group currently has no
such transactions, the interpretation has had no impact on the
financial position or results of operations of the Group.

IFRIC 12  Service Concession Arrangements

IFRIC 12 applies to service concession operators and explains
how to account for the obligations undertaken and rights
received in service concession arrangements. As the Group is
not an operator and, therefore, this interpretation has had no

impact on the financial position or results of operations of the
Group.

REREHEGEARA

b)
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

b)

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting
Standards (Continued)
IFRIC 14  |AS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction
IFRIC 14 addresses how to assess the limit under IAS 19
Employee Benefits, on the amount of a refund or a reduction
in future contributions in relation to a defined benefit scheme
that can be recognised as an asset, including situations when
a minimum funding requirement exists. As the Group has no
defined benefit scheme, the interpretation has had no effect on
these financial statements.

Judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires the directors to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection
and disclosure of the Group’s critical accounting policies
and estimates. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets or liabilities are as follows:

b)
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

c)

SCUD Group Limited

Judgments and estimates (Continued)

)

ii)

iii)

Investments held-to-maturity

The Group follows the IAS 39 guidance on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This
classification requires significant judgment. In making
this judgment, the Group evaluates its intention and
ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group
fails to keep these investments to maturity other than
for specific circumstances explained in IAS 39, it will be
required to reclassify the whole class as available-for-
sale. The investments would therefore be measured at
fair value not amortised cost.

Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges of its property, plant and
equipment. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. The
Group will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives,
and will write off or write down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable lives and therefore depreciation charges in
future periods.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and variable selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to any industry downturn. The
directors reassess the estimations at each balance sheet
date.

REREHEGEARA
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

c)

Judgments and estimates (Continued)

iv)

v)

Vi)

Allowances for bad and doubtful receivables

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful
receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability
of the receivables. This assessment is based on the
credit history of the customers and other debtors and
the current market condition. The directors reassess the
allowance at each balance sheet date.

Warranty claims

The Group generally offers half-year warranties for its
own-brand name products sold. The directors estimate
the related provision for future warranty claims based on
historical warranty claim information, as well as recent
trends that might suggest that past cost information may
differ from future claims. Factors that could impact the
estimated claim information include the success of the
Group’s productivity and quality initiatives, as well as
parts and labour costs.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the value in use. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, an impairment loss may arise. In
June 2008, the Company acquired the sale interest of
Chaolitong Technology Company Limited and the sale
assets of Chaolitong Electronic Company Limited, and
the carrying amount of goodwill at the balance sheet date
was RMB22,849,000. Details of the impairment testing
are provided in note 16.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

d)

e)

SCUD Group Limited

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December 2008. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies used into line with those used by the
Group.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company. A
subsidiary is considered to be controlled if the Company has
the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within
the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets (excluding goodwill) of
consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets
consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the
original business combination and the minority’s share of
changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses
applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest
in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of
the Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover
the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are recognised at their
fair values at the acquisition date.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

e)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the
business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the relevant business at the date of acquisition.
Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

f)

SCUD Group Limited

Goodwill (Continued)

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in
the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the greater of net selling price and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

h)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment (an
“ltem”) comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the Item to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
the Item has been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of the Item, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of the Item.

When, in the opinion of the directors, the recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment are below their carrying
amounts, provisions are made to write down the carrying
amounts of such assets to their recoverable amounts. (see also
note 3g) above)

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an Item recognised
in the income statement is the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant Item, and is
recognised in the income statement.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the assets on
the straight-line method, based on the estimated economic
useful lives of the individual assets, after taking into account
their estimated residual value, if any, at the following rates per
annum:
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

h)

SCUD Group Limited

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Electronic equipment, furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Plant and machinery 10%
Moulds 20%-33.33%
Leasehold improvements 10%

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or for its
own use purposes. Construction in progress is classified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation on these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Leased assets

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.

ii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to the income statement in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
income statement as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals, if any,
are charged to the income statement in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

)

Prepaid lease payments

The cost of land use rights is amortised to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period for which the
relevant land use right has been granted.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. After initial
recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives.

Distribution network 10 years
Domain names 3 years
Employee contracts 2.57 years
Non-compete agreements 2 years
Software 10 Years

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its
continued use. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition
of an intangible asset shall be determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying
amount of the asset. It shall be recognised in the income
statement when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if all of the
following conditions are met:

i) an asset is created that can be identified;

i) it is probable that the asset created will generate future
economic benefits; and

i) the development cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

m)

SCUD Group Limited

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when a Group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of

financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in the income statement.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Trade and note receivables, other receivables and deposits
and amounts due from related parties and bank balances
are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are
measured at initial recognition at fair value, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable
amounts. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable
amounts are recognised in the income statement when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. In terms of
trade receivables, for example, a provision for impairment is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
trade terms. Significant financial difficulties of debtors, such as
the probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the receivables are impaired.

The allowance recognised is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition. The allowance is
reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the allowance was recognised, subject to a
restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
allowance is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the allowance not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
in respect of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below:
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

i) Financial liabilities
Trade and notes payables, other payables, amounts due
to related parties, dividend payables and bank loans are
initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

i) Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received or any new asset obtained and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in
consolidated income statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid including other liabilities assumed is recognised in
consolidated income statement.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

SCUD Group Limited REBREBER QA
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

0)

Provisions (Continued)

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the income statement.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the period are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Chinese
Renminbi at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Chinese Renminbi at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised directly in a separate
component of equity.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

q)

r

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt
with in equity.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and is reduced for estimated customer
returns, rebates and other similar allowances, as follows:-

SCUD Group Limited REBREBER QA
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

r Revenue recognition (Continued)

i) Sales of goods
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed, which means that all
the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
entity; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

ii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts outstanding
and the interest rates applicable.

i) Processing income
Processing income is recognised when processing
services are provided.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

s)

SCUD Group Limited

Government grants

Government grants in the form of incentive payments are

recognised as income and reported separately as “other
income” when the government’s approval of grant is
unconditional.

Government grants related to new products research costs
are recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the related costs and

deducted in reporting the related expenses.

Employee benefits

ii)

i)

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave
passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Group. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and contributions to the retirement
schemes operated by the relevant authorities for
employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) are recognised as an expense in the
income statement as incurred, except to the extent
that they are included in the cost of inventories not yet
recognised as an expense.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan
which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

t)

u)

Employee benefits (Continued)

iv)  Equity-settled share-based payments
The fair value of services received, determined by
reference to the fair value of shares options granted
to the employees at the grant date, is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates, if any, is recognised in the income statement,
with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated profits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection
with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing costs are charged to the
income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition, less advances from
banks repayable within three months from the date of the
advance. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

w)  Related parties w)  BEEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: FEATER » THALTBRIEREEE
EAL:

i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one ) BB -RIALFN AR EEERERE
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise T AN S B S AN R B B R A
significant influence over the Group in making financial RRITEERFEN(RZIFA) 3K
and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the AEEEZ B AT ERIESIR LR
Group and the party are subject to common control or A
common significant influence;

i) the party is a member of the key management personnel i)y AAEEEFEEEAS:
of the Group;

iii)  the party is a close member of the family of any individual i) 70 ki) BATMUERIA L2
referred to in i) or ii);

iv)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled V) X E RS EL) Skiil) JB P AR A
or significantly influenced by or for which significant ATHEB 2 EEBES - HEZEDIHRZ
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or BAXENTHEASRER2ER
indirectly, any individual referred to in ii) or iii); or 573

v)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the v)  ZARMERNTAEESEREREE
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity that is AL Z IR EEESNBEBEERET
a related party of the Group. £

X)  Segment reporting X) DEHE
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that D EBE TR AN B N AT B R 1R D A9 4B K D

o YERERHEBBEN—ARENER
HIRG (EBOR) - HEFELERET
TR an R TS (ML D RF) - AAIER B
REM 7 BB ER D o

is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

88 SCUD Group Limited
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3. FESHEER®

X)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.
For example, segment assets may include property, plant
and equipment, inventories and trade receivables. Segment
revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are determined
before intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except to the
extent that such intra-group balances and transactions are
between group enterprises within a single segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the year to acquire segment assets that are expected to be used
for more than one year.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, corporate and
financing expenses.

4. Turnover and segment information

X)
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4. EEFERDEER

a)

Turnover
Turnover represents gross invoiced sales, less returns and
trade discounts.

Business segments

The Group’s business comprises two segments, namely, own-
brand business and original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”)
business. The directors of the Company (“Directors”) regard
these segments as the primary sources of the Group’s risks and
returns.

Segment information about these businesses is presented as
follows:
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4. Turnover and segment information (continued) 4, EEHFLRTBEER @
b)  Business segments (Continued) b) EBHE(#E)
Segment revenue and results DR R A
Group A5 H
2008 2007
—EEN\fE e 3
Own-brand 0EM Own-brand OEM
husiness husiness Others Total business business Others Total
BERE BAmiE

2% 0EMEH it At £ OEMEX Eft a5t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARMTR ARBTR ARETT ARETR AREBTT ARETL

Turnover EEE 845,055 342,171 65,467 1,252,693 616,022 325,185 19,714 960,921
Segment results e 204,672 65,162 (5,994) 263,840 172,969 70,063 477 243,509
Unallocated income AAEBA 19,206 28,718
Unallocated expenses ROBEE (139,859) (89,209)
Losses from fire NSER - (164,581)
Finance costs BAERA (830) (2,491)
Profit before taxation bRt AR 142,357 15,946
Taxation I8 (712) (429)
Profit for the year KEERF 142,285 15,517
Assets and liabilities BEENAE
Group A5 E
2008 2007
—EENfE “TTLE
Own-brand 0EM Own-brand OEM
husiness husiness Others Total business business Others Total
BERE BAME

2% OEMEH At ) X% OEMXH Rt st
RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB0O0  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
ARMTRL ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETL ARRTR ARETRT ARETR

Segment assets NEBE 533,422 200,043 - 733,465 251,666 140,618 - 392,284
Unallocated corporate assets  RAEARIEE 804,400 760,786
Consolidated total assets ~ #RAMEE 1,537,865 1,153,070
Unallocated corporate AORDAIEE

liabilities and consolidated ~ Ré&FAHAEE

total liabilities 317,183 180,774
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4. Turnover and segment information (continued) 4, EEHFERTEER @
c)  Other information c) HuEE
Group A&
2008 2007
“EZEN\E e 3
Own-brand 0EM Own-brand OEM
husiness business Others Total business  business Others Total
BERE BAmE
% EMEEK Hitr it £ OEMER Hith @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR AR%TR AR¥TR ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
Capital addition BRI 110,667 40,753 236,958 388,378 79,623 10,879 32,556 123,058
Depreciation of property, 1% BER
plant and equipment RENE 28,529 4,788 16,983 50,300 7,280 3,868 10,235 21,383
Allowance for/ REREE/
(write back of allowance)  (BEIEHE)
bad and doubtful debts 2,933 11,047 2,192 16,772 (1) (296) 615 318
Amortisation of intangible ~ EF/EE
assets ] - - 5,383 5,383 = = 247 247
The nature of the products, the production processes and the EmEE - - FEIFMBREIHEER TZ
method used to distribute the products to these two classes BRI AR o NEE R AEERTE
of customers are similar. The Group’s production facilities REFEMARFAE - ZMERFE AR AR
and inventories are located in the PRC. These two classes of BAASENER - Alt - Z5XFHE
customers utilise the Group’s resources in a similar manner. —AoHREERYE  WENMSEH  FE
Accordingly, the only separable assets are certain items of MEWE 57 BREENSTHEE -
property, plant and equipment, inventories and trade and notes
receivables for these customers.
d)  Geographical segments d) HEIEE

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and results as well as analysis
of the Group’s carrying amount of each relevant segment’s
assets and additions to property, plant and equipment and
intangibles by geographical market have not been presented as
they are substantially generated from or situated in the PRC.
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5. Other revenue 5. Hibukzs
Group
KEE
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Interest income FEUA 4,705 12,493
Foreign exchange gain P 5 W 9,567 6,755
Gain on disposal of SR H
short term investment B W= - 7,663
Processing income I A 624 759
Investment tax refund WERH 3,625 =
Sundry income E Uz A 685 1,048
19,206 28,718
6. Profit from operations R R
Profit from operations is arrived at after charging: KRN EIIBRATIER ¢
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN BN &
— current year provision — N [E AR 2,097 1,701
— prior year (overprovision)/underprovision —BEFE CRERE) BETE (779) 197
Amortisation i
— intangible assets —EREE 5,383 247
— prepaid lease payments —BNHAERIE 258 257
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIZIRE A 16,772 318
Cost of inventories recognised RAFRZH
as expenses FEKA 988,853 717,412
Depreciation (net of depreciation e (EMBREREAHRER
included in research and development HBEK AR ITE
costs of RMB3,621,000 AR# 3,621,000 7T
(2007: RMB2,779,000)) (ZZZ+F : AR¥2,779,0007T)) 46,679 18,604
Operating lease rentals — office premises LERS —WAEYE 8,282 5,266
Research and development costs T 75 R A B AR
(net of government grant of (B3R FTE B
RMB1,440,000 AR#E 1,440,000 7T
(2007: RMB1,820,000)) (ZZZ+F : AR¥1,820,0007T)) 17,138 12,473
Staff costs (note 7) B I (FzE7) 64,111 48,477
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7. Staff costs 7. BIHA
Group
REE
2008 2007
—EBENE —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Directors’ remuneration (note 8) 20 (M52 8) 1,017 898
Other staff costs Hh 8 TRA 65,368 50,775
Retirement benefits scheme E At B TH:RIREF
contributions FTEI R 2,534 2,035
Less: Staff costs included in B BT AT R AR A
research and development costs #) 8 TRA (4,808) (5,231)
64,111 48,477
8. Directors’ and employees’ remuneration 8. EEREEME
a)  The information pursuant to Section 161 of the Hong Kong a) IREEBRFEHIEI6HEEFENER N
Companies Ordinance is disclosed as follows: TS ¢
Group
REE
2008 2007
—BENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Fees e 1,001 882
Other emoluments: Hp <
Retirement benefits scheme RIREFEE
contributions TR 16 16

1,017 898
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8. Directors’ and employees’ remuneration 8. EEREEME »
(Continued)
b)  Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors are as b) AEERAEEIZNOMSFEAT :
follows:
2008 2007
ZZE\E ZERLE
Retirement Retirement
henefits benefits
scheme scheme
contri- contri-
hutions Total butions Total
Fees BARER emoluments Fees RINER emoluments
k2 HE ([ e we HE el
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETR AREBTTL ARETT AREFT
Fang Jin ik - 4 4 - 4 4
Lin Chao Wi - 4 4 - 4 4
Guo Quan Zeng ixie 414 4 418 438 4 442
Li Hui Qiu e 219 4 223 211 4 215
Heng Kwoo Seng a5 157 - 157 117 - 117
Wang Jing Zhong THR 61 - 61 58 - 58
Wang Jian Zhang TEE 61 - 61 58 - 58
Ho Man fa/gt 89 - 89 - - -
Total Bt 1,001 16 1,017 882 16 898
c)  The five highest paid individuals include two directors for the ) HEZEZNFFT-_A=T—HIEFE"
year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: two). Details of whose hEmERTMALTBERE (2T L4
emoluments are set out above. MB)ES  BEZMESFBHN L3 -
The emoluments of the remaining three (2007: three) highest E#H=FR(ZEZTLF : =) &RaFMA
paid individuals other than directors are as follows: T (BEZRIN ST :
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EBENF —TTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR¥ET T

Salaries, bonus, allowance and &% - #4%  EAL R

other benefits E s 1,449 1,014

Retirement benefits scheme RIREFIE 2
contributions HR 21 22
1,470 1,036
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8. Directors’ and employees’ remuneration

(Continued)

8. EENEEME»

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals

EBps&esHMAL (BEEHRN BN F

other than directors are within the following bands: ATEE :
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETLF
Nil to RMB881,900 ZE AR¥ 881,900
(equivalent to Nil to HKD1,000,000) (ZRZZ 1,000,000 ) 3 3

d) During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals (including both directors and
employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived any emolumens during both years. However, as a result
of the fire at the production plant of the Company in May 2007,
Mr. Guo Quan Zeng proposed a salary cut of 30% for himself
for one year and 10% for a half year for Mr. Li Hui Qiu effective

from August 2007.

9. Losses From Fire

d RBEFEAN  AEEHERNAERZSE
AL(BREERES) XNHEMME
YRR IR S| AN AR 6= B 3 0 A 7S 55 [ B ) %
B RERBMUAFEE - RMEFEA
WEEEHETAME - EARARFN
LTEBER _STLFRABENN - B
RIBELEZZR_TTLF)\ ARREIRE
a%—ﬁiﬁﬁmo%&?@ﬂ{f‘ﬁiﬁ’ﬂiﬁi%ﬁ
10% °

9. AK|E%

On 31 May 2007, there was a serious fire at the Group’s production
plant in Fuzhou, the PRC. Most of the Group’s inventories were
destroyed whilst most of its production lines were unaffected.

The losses incurred as a result of the fire are summarised as follows:

R-TTLERA=+—R  ARBERTEE
MO EEBEEEAK - AREABH FHEMA
% MARH LEMARIRE -

KIGERRIBRBAR LT -

Group
AEE
2007
—ETLF
RMB’000
ARETIT
Loss on inventories FEEX
Raw materials R 174,235
Work in progress B 7,690
Finished goods ER 17,469
199,394
Loss on property, plant and Y -~ BE KR EEKR
equipment 10,458
Estimated costs for reconstruction EEZASIEEN
of the rented premises being AEY MR
damaged in the fire BN 8,285
218,137
Less: Compensation received from o REARIR=ZZELEF
the insurers in November 2007 +— AT MEE (52,490)
Receipts from sales of scrap S E BRI FIR YR
materials damaged (1,066)
Net losses BRFE 164,581
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10. Finance costs

10. @& A

11.

Group
REE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Interest on bank borrowings ERITIE KA B 443 1,352
Interest on discounted notes IR E W T B
receivable (without recourse) GiZ:3Eh ) - 195
Effective interest on convertible AR ES 2
bonds BRRAE - 891
Other finance costs Hibph &R 387 53
830 2,491

Taxation

11. B

No provision for taxation has been made by the Company as it
is not subject to tax in the Cayman lIslands or elsewhere in other
jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group’s
profits were neither arising in nor derived from Hong Kong during both
years, and all subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong incurred tax
losses during the year.

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is based on the
estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes at the rate of
taxation applicable for the period. Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co.,
Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”) and Scud (Fujian) Battery Co., Ltd. (“Scud
Battery”) are foreign investment enterprises located in Mawei District,
Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC. Scud Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(“Scud Shenzhen”) and Chaolitong Technology Company Limited
(“Chaolitong Technology”) are foreign investment enterprises located
in Shenzhen, PRC. Both Mawei District and Shenzhen are designated
as an Economic Development Zone. Accordingly, Scud Electronics,
Scud Battery, Scud Shenzhen and Chaolitong Technology are subject
to an income tax rate of 15%.

Pursuant to the PRC Law of Income Tax of Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises, Detailed Rules and Regulations
for the Implementation of PRC Law of Income Tax of Foreign
Investment Enterprise and Foreign Enterprises and the approval
document #& F B & Bt [2003] 725% and A B B £ Ex[2007] 4
g% issued by Fuzhou Tax Bureau Branch on 15 May 2003 and 7
February 2007, respectively, Scud Electronics and Scud Battery are
entitled to an exemption from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for two
years commencing from its first profit-making year of operation to a
50% relief from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the next three years.

REREHEGEARA
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11. Taxation (continuea)

11.

B2

Scud Electronics started to enjoy the tax exemption from 2002
and the tax relief from 2004. A reduced income tax rate of 7.5%
therefore applies from 2004 to 2006. In 2007, Scud Electronics has
successfully extended the preferential income tax rate for three more
years and has enjoyed an effective rate of 10% for the period from
April 2007 to April 2010, both years inclusive.

Scud Battery started to enjoy the tax exemption from 2007.

Pursuant to the PRC Law of Income Tax of Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises, Detailed Rules and Regulations
for the Implementation of PRC Law of Income Tax of Foreign
Investment Enterprise and Foreign Enterprises and the approval
document ZREIF BE4mR % [2008] 4 5% and BT B 18R % [2007]
0111 %% issued by Shenzhen Tax Bureau Branch on 8 January 2008
and 10 September 2007, Chaolitong Technology and Scud Shenzhen
are entitled to an exemption from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for two
years commencing from its first profit-making year of operation to a
50% relief from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the next three years.

Chaolitong Technology and Scud Shenzhen started to enjoy the tax
exemption from 2008.

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law announced by the
National People’s Congress on 16 March 2007, the Detailed Rules
and Regulations for the Implementation of PRC Enterprise Income
Tax Law and Guofa BI%E [2007] 3955 released by the State Council
on 6 December 2007 and 26 December 2007 respectively, the tax
exemptions granted to Scud Battery, Chaolitong Technology and
Scud Shenzhen can be continued until their respective expiry dates.
For Scud Electronics, the applicable tax rate is 18% in 2008.

REBREFHR T _FREFHEHMBIE - I
BE-ZTTNFRZETRE - BN =TT NF
1_7?/\¢%%ﬁwﬁﬁﬁ’]¢¥ﬁﬁ SHET7 5% o
=EF m%%@¥aﬁm%§§% SHEH
LE F WERZEELFHAZEZT—TF
@ﬂt@%@ﬁ%@ﬁﬁw;ﬁf%m 10% ©

RERELA _TTLFERBZTATHARR °

RIBERBIINE B RBEIMEENAETE - Bif
REIINE 2 R B M ZE R AT S AR FE AR B
KRG ARV D BR 2T NF— HA
BERZZZT+FNA+HELOEMN SRR

T BE TR . [200814 5% K 7% B 7 B 48 U3 &2 [2007]
01115% - BABRERFIITREREERE
SRR F I AR ST RO AF NERA SR AN R B 1D 3
FTi8%i + LERRR=F =5 50% K B AT
BIRER -

BIEMBERIIRERBE ST N\FREZEH
RERR ©

REZEARRKRAEN_ZETLF=A1TXA
NG ESE T IR C T S M&I%T Al
RZBELFTZARBRZEZLF TR
—HARNBEMNTEEEAEIOAPIE AR
B R A A7 DA 2 [ 2% (2007139 5% » X TRERRE
A R BRHR MRERRRYI RO BIRE % AT AR
=HEENEMARAL REREFTR_FF
NEBROBER18% °
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11. Taxation (continueq) 11. ﬁIE (%)
Details of the charge in the consolidated income statement are as FTARE NSRS HFBAT ¢
follows:

Group

rEE
2008 2007
—eEN\FE = —TTLH
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT

Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax ENEA# T8 — fh B 1> 2 FS AL

Tax for the year REEHIE 72 =
Underprovision in prior years LARTSFE BT R - 429
Taxation A 72 429

The reconciliation between profit before taxation and taxation in the

REREREERA - F AR ADE M B IR iR

consolidated income statement is as follows: J/(u N
Group
REE
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT

Profit before taxation BR A% A& A 142,357 15,946
Tax at income tax rate of 25% SRR 25% st EFi 1A 35,589 2,392

(2007: 15%) (2007: 15%)
Tax effect of different tax rates of R R ARG E B AT

subsidiaries operating RN R0y TR 5=

in other jurisdictions 340 745
Tax effect of expenses not TAHF A RS E

deductible for tax purposes 5,548 13,597
Tax effect of income not taxable BAERFUW AN R 2

for tax purposes (1,176) (8,359)
Tax effect of temporary differences SRR ERE R =N ET 2

not previously recognised 1 1
Underprovision in prior years AR ERET R - 429
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ~ ARFERTIBE BRI T 15 7 2 294 4,361
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FRHIEEEN ST E (2,704) -
Effect of concessionary rate granted PR B AR ERHERER

to the PRC subsidiaries )= (37,820) (12,737)
Taxation I8 72 429

SCUD Group Limited REBREBER QA
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Dividends

12.

8]

13.

A final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008 of HK$0.02
per share, amounting to a total final dividend of approximately
RMB18,026,000 is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. These financial statements do not reflect
this dividend payable.

An interim dividend for the six-month period ended 30 June 2007
of HK$0.02 per share, amounting to a total interim dividend of
approximately RMB19,211,000 was paid to the shareholders during
the year ended 31 December 2007.

A final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007 of HK$0.02
per share, amounting to a total final dividend of approximately
RMB18,578,000 was declared and paid to the shareholders during
the year ended 31 December 2008.

Earnings per share

13.

HE-ZTZN\F+ZA=+—BIFEANRARK
B.0.02/8 TR AR 18,026,000 TTHARAR
AREBRRBFEARE LIRE - AMBHRRLER
BRI TR FEALE.

REBEE-_ZT+E+-_A=1t—HIFER " B
RNEZE T EEXA =18 1E/NE AT H
& B EA%0.02 8 EREL AREE 19,211,000 T F
AEER o

REBEE_ZEENF+_A=1+—"HBLEFER "
EERMENBEZE_ZEZELF+_A=1+—H
IFFENRARBER0.02B TAELHARE
18,578,000 7T T IR ER -

BEREF

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the equity holders of the Company is based on the
following data:

A TR B REE RS R RS T8
B

Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EBENE —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Earnings for the purposes of basic FTESREAREF R REF
earnings per share (profit for the (RNAREEFE ABEAEEHH)
year attributable to the equity
holders of the Company) 131,954 15,513
Number of ordinary shares
ZERHE
2008 2007
—BENF ZEELF
000 ‘000
BAF &t LATF&T
Weighted average number of ordinary — stEFIEARZEFIH
shares for the purposes of basic TR NN a2
earnings per share 1,001,453 981,826
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary AB TSR T B
shares 0%
— share options — BB AR 7,146 215
— contingent shares to be issued on — WSR3 AT T BT
acquisition of Chaolitong 2 SRR 5,671 =
12,817 215
Weighted average number of ordinary 5+ & &% #5% & A
shares for the purposes of diluted YL 3 AR DN S
earnings per share 1,014,270 982,041
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14. Property, plant and equipment

14. 9% - BERRE

SCUD Group Limited

Electronic
equipment, Leasehold
furniture and Motor Plant and Construction improve-
fixtures vehicles  machinery Moulds in progress ments Total
ETRE BER HE
FRREE AE B BE  EEIR  WE#EE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETR
Group Py |
Cost B
1 January 2007 “TTt+F—-f—H 40,439 6,144 45,070 20,084 1,000 - 112,737
Exchange adjustment INEFR 9) - - - - - 9)
Additions AE 15,624 2,586 45,545 2,382 54,977 39 121,509
Transfer B 796 351 - 9,818 (11,856) 891 -
Disposals HE (7,824) (900) (12,966) = = - (21,690)
31 December 2007 “FE+E+-A=1-H 49,026 8,181 77,649 32,284 44,121 1,286 212,547
Exchange adjustment INEFR 9) - - - (2,825) - (2,834)
Additions AE 13,723 679 39,159 2,278 25,295 68,658 149,792
Additions through acquisition EUEEHIB A 1,143 52 7,556 2,578 - - 11,329
of a subsidiary MAE
Transfer B 2,963 284 = - (17,653) 14,406 =
31 December 2008 “FEN\E+-A=1-H 66,846 9,196 124,364 37,140 48 938 84,350 370,834
Depreciation il
1 January 2007 “TTt+F—-f—H 16,724 1,812 8,522 6,192 - - 33,250
Exchange adjustment INEFR 2) - - - - = 2)
Charge for the year AFERY 8,516 8% 6,313 5,571 - 88 21,383
Disposals & (3,377) (623) (6,279) - - - (10,279)
31 December 2007 “FE+E+-A=1-H 21,861 2,084 8,556 11,763 - 88 44,352
Exchange adjustment INEFR (4) - - - - = (4)
Charge for the year AFERY 9,398 1,038 9,546 7,315 - 23,003 50,300
31 December 2008 “FEN\E+-A=1-H 31,255 3122 18,102 19,078 - 23,091 94,648
Net book value REFE
31 December 2008 “FEN\E+-A=1-H 35,591 6,074 106,262 18,062 48 938 61,259 276,186
31 December 2007 “FE+E+-A=1-H 27,165 6,097 69,093 20,521 44,121 1,198 168,195

REREREGEARA
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14. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 14. W¥ - BERRE®
Motor vehicles have been pledged by the Group in favour of a bank to AEEBEHAERATIRT - (EA—HETER
secure a bank loan granted by a bank to the Group. (see also note 22 RIEMR o (R TXHIRE22)
below).
15. Prepaid lease payments 15. A HEMRIE
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land outside ARE B TENEEFIEBREASEIREF AFEL
Hong Kong held by the Group under medium term leases, as follows: RERBUINGEE T - FFBWT ¢
Group
AEE
RMB’000
ARETTT
Cost %S
1 January 2007 R-ZZEZ+F—HF—H 12,528
Additions 0 376
31 December 2007 R_ZEZL+F+-_A=+—H 12,904
Additions N -
31 December 2008 RZZEZEN\F+=-_A=+—H 12,904
Amortisation ey
1 January 2007 R-_ZEZ+F—HA—H 146
Charge for the year REERE 257
31 December 2007 RZZZLF+_A=1+—H 403
Charge for the year AEEREZ 258
31 December 2008 RZZEZENF+=A=+—H 661
Net carrying amount BREFE
31 December 2008 RZEENF+=ZA=1+—H 12,243
31 December 2007 RZZEZE+LF+=A=1+—H 12,501
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15. Prepaid lease payments (continued) 15. ENHEERE @)
An analysis for reporting purposes is as follows: EERABH AT ¢
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EBENFE ZETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AREETIT
Current portion BNERER 258 258
Non-current portion JERNERZE 5 11,985 12,243
12,243 12,501
Prepaid lease payments are released to the consolidated income AEBENSEERBZBERA +FHEGE WamR
statement over the term of the leases of 50 years. kR o
The directors consider that the carrying amount of prepaid lease EERABENEEFENIRMEREL QR FEHE
payments approximates to their fair value. Ao
16. Intangible assets 16. BIL&EE
Distribution ~ Trade names Domain Employee  Non-compete
network  and patents names contracts  agreements Goodwill Software Total
(Note i) (Note ii) (Note iii)
AHRE  RRESF g%  [EBRN THRIHE [ g @
(Ht3Ei) (REii) (R

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABRTL  ARETR ARETR ARMTn ARMTR ARETR AR¥TL ARETR

Group REE
Cost A
1 January 2007 ZZ3tF-f-H - = = = = = 2070 2070
Additions 0 - - - - - - 1,549 1,549
31 December 2007 5 2 e = - = = = = = 3,619 3,619
Additions 10 - - - - - - 80 80
Additions through RISERBA

acquisition of MAE

a subsidiary 97,664 106,182 74 58 350 22,849 - 227,177
31 December 2008 “EE\Ft-A=1-H 97,664 106,182 14 58 350 22,849 3,699 230,876
Amortisation e
1 January 2007 “Z3tE-f-H - - - - - - 263 263
Charge for the year REERY - - - - - - 247 247
31 December 2007 “E3tF+-A=1-H - - - - - - 510 510
Charge for the year REEHT 4,883 - 12 11 88 = 389 5,383
31 December 2008 “ZE\F+ZA=1-H 4,883 - 12 11 88 - 899 5,893
Net carrying amount REFE
31 December 2008 “EZ\&+-A=t-H 92,781 106,182 62 41 262 22,849 2,800 224,983
31 December 2007 “ZEtE+-A=1-H - - - - - - 3,109 3,109

102 SCUD Group Limited REBEBEHER AR
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16. Intangible assets (continueq)

16. BIEEE »)

Notes:

i

iii)

iv)

Distribution network represents the sales network of the Chaolitong
brand, covering second tier and third tier cities, towns and villages in
the PRC.

Trade names and patents comprise 7 trade names and 3 patents held
by Chaolitong.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of the “Chaolitong #8138 " brand
is attributable to the anticipated revenue growth, profitability, future
market development and anticipated future operating synergies from
the combination.

Goodwill has been allocated to the single cash generating unit (“CGU"),
Chaolitong. The recoverable amount has been determined based on
a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a 5-year
period which has been extrapolated using the estimated growth rate
ranging from 3% to 20%. These growth rates are based on the relevant
industry growth forecasts and do not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 14%. Another key assumption for the value in
use calculations is the budgeted gross margin, which is determined
based on the CGU’s past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. The value in use calculated by using the
discount rate is higher than the carrying amount of the CGU. As a result,
there is no impairment of goodwill in the current year.

The Group carries annual impairment tests for goodwill and trade
names and patents with indefinite useful lives, or more frequently if
there are indications that these intangible assets might be impaired.
The acquired distribution network, non-compete agreements, employee
contracts, domain names and software are amortised on a straight-line
basis over their respective estimated useful lives.

17. Deferred tax assets

wiit -
i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

DIHBEEBNBRENRERE - - =R
M~ SRR SR S S EARAR o

B RBH DN B 07 MR NIAS
Ao

Ui [ Chaolitong #8758 | MEEL 2B TIRR
BHEERIWEIER  HAIREN - REMS
BRNMERR RS EES B EPIE

BEEORIE-—RBREELEM((REE
HEAL]) - BIEENB o R EEERIIRIEE B E
BEREEE - ZatEERREEREIERER
FHOMBREHRRSRIERN - BRENFIRE
20% 2 EEBREME - ZERERTIREEFH
TRIERTNETE - B NEBEEITENFER
HE R - REMIARIEAZBIRE14% - 515
EREERNS—AE2REARERASELSE
(B RE R EIEE Y H iSRRI EE KR
HENE - ARURAEAENEREESRD
EeRfE N mr R B R E BT A ENRE(E -
WEAERE 2 B EIRE

7R 5 [ A P AR A P B K R B BRI 1T 4R
EREN - kBT EERTRAAHE - A
S hnEF AT o PrliEZ 2 AR - T
B EEEH - BB REMARRRRN
E& B2 FHERFHETH -

17. REHIBEE

Group by |
1 January 2007 RZEZ+E—-F—H
Credit to consolidated income statement ALK EE

31 December 2007
Credit to consolidated income statement

31 December 2008

R=ZEZ+F+=-A=+—H
FTAGRE M EE

R=BEEN\FE+=A=+-H

Impairment Impairment
loss on loss on
property, trade and  Accelerated
plant and other accounting
equipment receivables  depreciation Total
EBRESTE
WE- - BER  REMEK nE
REAESR FEAEESR AstiTE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARBTT ARETR
156 1,297 222 1,675
156 1,297 222 1,675
156 1,297 222 1,675
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17. Deferred tax assets (continued) 17. EEHIBEE 2

104

The Group has unused tax loss of approximately RMB15,020,000
(2007: RMB?29,848,000), that can be carried forward for five
years from the year in which the loss arose for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the company in which the loss arose. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
RMB15,020,000 (2007: RMB29,848,000) unused tax loss due to
unpredictability of future profit streams for offsetting the unused tax
loss before expiry. The unrecognised tax losses will expire in 2012.

According to Articles 3 and 37 of the Enterprise Income Tax Law,
distribution of dividends by a foreign investment enterprise in China
to its non-tax resident foreign investor is subject to Enterprise Income
Tax at source on a withholding basis. The standard withholding tax
rate pursuant to article 4 of the Enterprise Income Tax Law is 20%.
According to Article 27 of the Enterprise Income Tax Law and Article
91 of the Detailed Implementation Rules of the Enterprise Income
Tax Law, the applicable withholding tax rate has been reduced to
10%. In addition, according to Cai Shui [2008], a circular jointly
issued by the Ministry of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation on 22 February 2008, distribution of dividends out of pre-
2008 retained profits by a foreign investment enterprise to its foreign
investor in or after 2008 is exempt from Enterprise Income Tax,
whereas distribution of dividends out of profits generated by a foreign
investment enterprise in or after 2008 shall be subject to Enterprise
Income Tax in accordance with the relevant articles of the Enterprise
Income Tax Law and its Detailed Implementation Regulations as
described above. No liability has been recognised in respect of
differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries
as at the balance sheet date because the Group is in position to
control the turning of the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

REREHEGEARA
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18. Due from a related party 18. EIREBEALRE
The amount due from a related party is unsecured, interest-free and Bl — 2 BRBEATHRELERR 2B KA
repayable on demand. RERFFERER -
The information pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong RIBEB DN BNEHIE 161B IEBHENERIT :

Companies Ordinance is disclosed as follows:

Maximum balance Balance at Balance at
during the year 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
RZBENE+=A RZZTZLE+_HA

FRBELH =t+—- A& =+—AMEH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AR®TT ARETT
Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. BERERRNERATF 1,126 938 1,126
Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. is a company with Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. BEREBBEOBRAR B —HATERE - #
Lin Chao and Mr. Guo Quan Zeng being common directors and BEERBRIEEERARNEERBIROAF -
shareholders.
The directors consider that the carrying amount of the amount due EERREWBBEANLHIENIREEEE AT
from a related party approximates to its fair value. BfRAE -
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19. Inventories

Group
AEE
2008 2007
—BENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Raw materials JRIEL 140,799 88,197
Work in progress R on 31,626 58,240
Finished goods Em 5,600 2,677
178,025 149,114
All inventories were stated at cost. BTSSR AR
20. Trade and notes receivables 20. EWE S RIEREWERE
Group
REE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Trade receivables R E 5508 301,218 183,377
Notes receivables =R 37,017 13,808
338,235 197,185
Less: Allowance for bad and B RERERREHE
doubtful debts (19,454) (5,686)
318,781 191,499
Notes receivables have been pledged by the Group in favour of a AEEE BEWEBRERTIRT - (ERENEER

bank to secure notes payables of RMB15.6 million. (See also note 22
below)

An aged analysis of trade and notes receivables as at the balance

AER# 15,600,000 TTHIHER o (BT XHizE22)

REZERR  EHRBERAREERNREES

FAREREEREDITAT

sheet date, based on the invoice date and net of allowane, is as

106

follows:

Group

AEE
2008 2007
—E2ENE —EELF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETIT
0 to 60 days 0ZE 60X 200,344 162,942
61 to 180 days 61 £ 180K 116,995 26,169
181 to 365 days 181 365k 1,441 1,943
1to 2 years —EMF 1 438
2 to 3 years WE=4F - 7
318,781 191,499

The average credit period granted on sale of goods ranged from 60 to
90 days.

SCUD Group Limited

REREHEGEARA
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20.

Trade and notes receivables (continued) 20. BWE SREREBWEE «
Details of trade and notes receivables denominated in different A TRRIE®ESIERNERE S I8 & EKREZEFS
currencies are as follows: T -
Group
AEE
2008 2007
ZBENF —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Chinese Renminbi AR 310,675 172,203
United States dollars eI 8,106 19,296
318,781 191,499
Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the year FRARERBENHES T
were as follows:
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EBENE ZEELF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
1 January —H—H 5,686 5,983
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 13,770 =
Impairment losses reversed B #E R EEE (2) (297)
31 December +=—A=+—H 19,454 5,686

The aged analysis of the trade and notes receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

e E 5 308 & B U R R eV iR ik 2 AT (B Am R
HARIRARE) AT

Neither past due nor impaired I AR B B SR B
Less than 6 months past due BERD B 7N E A
Over 6 months past due BERSE A A

Group

AEH
2008 2007
—BENF —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARETT
200,344 162,942
116,995 26,169
1,442 2,388
318,781 191,499
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20. Trade and notes receivables (continued) 20. FEWWE SFIER EWERE

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide R B HA SR E A R I RBE R R A SR R F M
range of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history HIBFWEE L RCER o
of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of R B B SOR E R R UGRIE R R K EH RSB R
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. FEEAREEE RIFORH « IRIRAELER
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the ARREERERAAEGEABIBEERRE
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of MEATEINER 28U E - A E AELREEE
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit TTRE RS o ANEE I TE 15 LR IE M (TR
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The BYHMSERSIENE ©

Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and notes EERARRESFERERERNIRAESRS
receivables approximates to their fair value. NEEREE ©

21. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 21. FE{IIE - IRE R HMEYR
15

Group

REE
2008 2007
—BENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Advance to suppliers [ FE R 2R 62,680 102,088
Advance to Fujian Youtong Co., Ltd. MBERAEEBR A AR - 52
Deposit for investment KBRS - 20,000
Refundable deposits AR EE S 393 1,633
Others Hh 4,677 5,097
67,750 128,870

Less: Allowance for bad and i RIBIRESHE

doubtful debts (6,284) (3,280)
61,466 125,590
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21. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  21. JB{J31E + IRE R HEYR
(Continued) I8 (&
Details of prepayments, deposits and other receivables denominated AT REBIIENTEMNKIE « 2e R EMmEIKEK
in different currencies are as follows: HFBT -
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EEN\F —EEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Chinese Renminbi AREE 56,218 109,673
Hong Kong dollars BT 987 2,186
Japanese Yen H 1,201 843
United States dollars ETT 3,060 12,888
61,466 125,590
Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the year FERRIBRBEENEEINT
were as follows:
Group
REE
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

1 January —H—H

Impairment losses recognised EERREEE
Impairment losses reversed B R EEE
31 December +=-—HA=+—H

None of the above assets is past due. The financial assets included in
the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables approximates to their fair value.

3,280 2,665

3,109 2,643
(105) (2,028)

6,284 3,280

LA EBEIW R o A EEAFEPT B 1R BB K
BRPBEEM LB ELEENNCE -

EER/BNRA - e REMBYGIRNIRE
EEANHERE °
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22,

Pledge of assets

22.

EERH

23.

At the balance sheet date, the following assets have been pledged by
the Group in favour of the banks to secure general banking facilities
granted by the banks to the Group:

REER - AEBEEMATEEERRTRT - (E
AR —RRITEENER

Group

AEE
2008 2007
—BENF —ETAHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREET T

Motor vehicles RE
Bank deposits RITER
Notes receivables W= IR

Details of the pledged bank deposits denominated in different
currencies are as follows:

2,623 2,956
105,942 29,375
15,613 =
124,178 32,331

SRR S ERRIT R S REMT -

2008 2007
—EENF —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREET T

Chinese Renminbi AR
United States dollars =TT

The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of 4.14% per
annum for the year (2007: 4.14% per annum), and will be released
upon the settlement of the notes payable. The directors consider that
the carrying amount of the pledged bank deposits approximates to
their fair value.

Bank balances and cash

23.

103,881 25,847
2,061 3,528
105,942 29,375

FAEERRTEFIRLAE(ZZSZLF: §F
A14B)WEEFMEE - THNMENENR
BRT AR - EERAEEMRBITFERNIRE
EEANTHERS °

RITEBRRRE

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short-
term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
The short-term bank deposits carry fixed interest rate at 1.35% per
annum (2007: 1.71% per annum). The directors consider that the
carrying amount of bank balances and cash approximates to their fair
value.

SCUD Group Limited REBREBER QA

RITEHRLEA S EEAKERENRE RREH
B A=EA A THREIRITFR - MHRITF
FIEEEFMEIBE(ZETLF  §F171
B S - EERRRITEHR LR S MIRAE(ESE
HAFERE -
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23.

Bank balances and cash (continuea)

23.

BITEBREBEE =

Details of bank balances and cash denominated in different
currencies are as follows:

AR BN R EH BB S HEMT -

Group

rEH
2008 2007
—EENEF ZERELF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR¥ET T

24,

Chinese Renminbi AR
Hong Kong dollars BT
United States dollars ETT

The Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”) is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Due to a related party

24.

331,185 343,778
1,417 46,312
18,574 78,393
351,176 468,483

ARE(TAREDIETTEREBREMER - A
- BHEINEEIR RO MEE « (FEREEE
ERE - NEE KR RIREETTING BT
ZIRITHE o

BNRBEALRE

The amount due to a related party is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Details are as follows:

ENAREALHNSEBRERER 2ERARE
REFEE -

RIEWT
Group
AEE

2008 2007

—BENF —ETHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Chaolitong Electronic Company Limited BB ETFER AR

3,877 -
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24,

Due to a related party (continuea)

24.

EEREALRE 2

25.

Mr. Ma Jie and Mr. Zheng Wei are directors and shareholders of both
Chaolitong Electronic Company Limited and Chaolitong Technology
Company Limited.

Trade and notes payables

25.

BARGERBREERBENBEFARARKLE
TBMRARARNAREERER -

BRNEZSRERENERE

Group

AEME
2008 2007
—EENE —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREET T

Trade payables JEE 5508
Notes payables ERRE

Notes payable of 15.6 million were secured by an equivalent amount
of Chinese Renminbi. (see also note 22 above)

An aged analysis of trade and notes payables at the balance sheet
date is as follows:

123,148 89,042
134,494 44,366
257,642 133,408

REARY 15,600,000 TH RN RIBNEEE R
ZAREEAMEER o (B EXFEE22)

PATR B0

DT

HARNEHHBRRENERARE

Group

AEEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARET T

0 to 60 days 0&E 60X

61 to 180 days 61 2180k
181 to 365 days 181 365K
1 to 2 years —EMF

2 to 3 years —E=4
Over 3 years =FE

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade
purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period taken for
trade purchases ranged from 30 to 60 days.

SCUD Group Limited REBREBER QA

120,863 76,731
118,701 49,068
9,931 5,962
8,040 1,456
87 144

20 47
257,642 133,408

ENEZFIRTEBEESBEE RSEKANR

SRR -

H o

BHBENEERFHENFI0BE0
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25.

Trade and notes payables (continued)

25. ENEZFERESNEE®

Details of trade and notes payables denominated in different
currencies are as follows:

ATRERIIER RN E S8 MENRERFE

T

Group

rEE
2008 2007
—EENFE T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREETIT
Chinese Renminbi AREE 205,386 97,553
United States dollars ETT 45,669 19,281
Hong Kong dollars BT 4,718 4,992
Japanese Yen H 1,869 11,582
257,642 133,408

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and notes
payables approximates to their fair value.

EERRENEZTENENEBRNIREEEE

DFERE -

26. Provision for warranty 26. EmRIEEHEE
Group
REE
2008 2007
—EEN\F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
1 January —H—H 2,225 2,572
Additions 0 1,458 -
Release o - (347)
31 December +=—A=+—~H 3,683 2,225

The provision for warranty claims represents management’s best
estimate of the Group’s liability under a half-year warranty program
granted on the own-brand name battery, based on prior experience
and industry averages for defective products.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of provision for
warranty approximates to its fair value.

EmREREEFSEEEEREBERLREE
AREFHEE » AKRERENEAmEEL
FEREFENRRFELOREMSR

EERREMREEBENIREEREL A FER

4+

Eo
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27. Other payables, receipts in advance and  27. H{tfE(IFIE - FAWFUERFE
accrued charges a2 A
Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Deposits from customers B 10,422 6,076
Payroll and welfare payables EARE RS 9,491 4,324
Accrued expenses B X 3,779 4,172
Estimated costs for reconstruction sEZANSGEE
of the rented premises HEYHE
being damaged in fire B (EET A - 8,285
Other taxes payable Hth fEfH R IR 7,208 7,331
Others Hh 13,284 547
44,184 30,735
Details of other payables, receipts in advance and accrued charges LA R E B HIE R E b 5/ « TAUGRIE KB
denominated in different currencies are as follows: STERFEOT
Group
AEH
2008 2007
—ZEENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETIT
Chinese Renminbi AR 41,147 28,255
Hong Kong dollars BT 2,059 2,454
United States dollars =TT 978 26
44,184 30,735
The directors consider that the carrying amount of other payables, BEERAAEEMEME[FIE - TEWGRIERIE
receipts in advance and accrued charges approximates to their fair T ERAIREEREAFEES -
value.
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28. Bank loans 28. RITEN
Group
KEE
2008 2007
—BENF —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETIT
Secured bank loans EHERRITER 1,797 14,406
The terms of repayment of the bank loans are as follows: RITERCERFHT ¢
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Within 1 year or on demand —FRHIREK 7,279 13,444
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFRN 444 444
After 2 year but within 5 years MERERFR 74 518
Over 5 years s Rk - =
518 962
7,797 14,406
As 31 December 2008, bank loans of approximately RMB962,000 AZEENF+_A=+—H ' ' BEHARE
were secured by the Group’s motor vehicles with a carrying amount 962,000 LRI RITE RIAAREBIREEN AR
of approximately RMB2,623,000(see also note 22 above). Bank loans 2,623,000 7T K /R EE AR (R A EMIFE22) -
of USD1,000,000 were secured by an equivalent amount of Chinese 801,000,000 THRITEZTASBEZENA
Renminbi. There were no other borrowings other than bank loans as REERER - R_2ZT ) \F+=_A=+—8
at 31 December 2008. RIBITERIMEEE M TR ©
At 31 December 2007, bank loans of approximately RMB1,406,000 RZZTZLF+A=+—H8  BEHARE
were secured by the Group’s motor vehicles with a carrying amount of 1,406,000 T I RITE R AR S BIRE B4 A
approximately RMB2,956,000 (see also note 22 above). Bank loans R 2,956,000 7T B T B AE A (R A L&
of approximately RMB13,000,000 were guaranteed for repayment by 22) o # AR ¥ 13,000,000 T IR TE R B RE
Scud Battery. BRE M IR LR RIELR o
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28. Bank loans (continuea)

28. tR1ITEFR )

The fair value of the above bank loans is estimated by discounting
their future cash flows at the prevailing market borrowing rates at the
balance sheet date.

The average effective interest rates per annum (which are also equal
to the contractual interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings are
as follows:

FRITERN A FERGEE B TS E SR XA,
RERKREREMETAE -

AERENEROFHERER (TFREREOH
ESFUNNE

Group
AEH
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Average effective E S ERZ
interest rate on S A= TP
fixed-rate borrowings 6.01% 4.88%

Details of bank borrowings denominated in different currencies are as
follows:

AR RS E R BT BT

Group
REE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Chinese Renminbi AREE 962 14,406
United States dollars eI 6,835 =
7,797 14,406

The directors consider that the carrying amount of the bank loans

approximates to their fair value.
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29. Share capital

29. A&

Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each

in Thousands Amount
S8%0.108 T RMB’000
ZERRE ot |

TR AR¥T T

Authorised:
At 31 December 2007 and 2008

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 January 2008

Issue of shares for acquisition
of Chaolitong (Note i)

At 31 December 2008

Note:

SERE
R-ZELER-TT/\F+-A=+—H

EHTRMRE

R-TTN\F—FA—H
W B A B 77
B (a2

R=_ZEZENF+=-_A=+—H

piat -

i) On 7 September 2008, the Company issued and allotted 30,000,000 i)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at HK$1.18 each as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of the Sale Interest (as defined
below) of CLTT and the Sale Assets (as defined below) of Chaolitong
Electronics Company Limited (“CLTE") (see also note 30 below for

details).

5,000,000 502,530
992,001 99,503
30,000 2,631
1,022,001 102,134

RZZEZN\FNALH  RARESR1.18%T
) B 1% 3 17 & it 2 30,000,000 A% & A% {5 0.10
BITHEBER  ERNEBIEREEERER
(BERTX) RBORETERAR ([BARE
FDHEEE(EER TONHHNRIE (FiEE
IR T 3BT 30)
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30. WEE—FENE AR

WHEB BRI AR AR

30. Acquisition of a subsidiary

Acquisition of Chaolitong Technology Company Limited

118

7.6.2008
—EEN\F
NAtH
Fair Value
ATE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Net assets acquired: BUEEEFE :
Production equipment EER 11,329
Inventories FE& 25,010
Bank balance and cash IRITHEBRRIRS 891
Intangible assets: BIVEE
— Trade names and patents — AR EF 106,182
— Distribution network — AR A 97,664
— Non-compete agreements — NEtH ek 350
— Employee contracts —EEEH 58
— Domain names — 1 74
Minority interest DY R A (72,467)
169,091
Goodwill on acquisition W B E A 7 i 22,849
Total consideration KRB 191,940
Total consideration satisfied by: LATRA A R AR EREE
— Cash - 128,230
— Consideration shares —RERD (FR7ERK B &
(60 million shares of the BRI TE1.18 BITH
Company at closing price 7R 760,000,000 B A7)
of HK$1.18 per share on
the Completion Date) 62,755
Commission payable to the Vendor ENEL RS 955
191,940
Net cash outflow arising from WHEEE ZRESmE
acquisition: AR
— Cash consideration paid —BNHEeNE 128,230
— Bank balances and — BB IRTTAE R
cash acquired Re (623)
127,607

SCUD Group Limited REBREBER QA
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30.

Acquisition of a subsidiary (continued)

30. WiE— BB AR @

On 12 December 2007, the Company entered into an agreement
(the “Agreement”) with Mr. Ma Yuk Sang (the “Vendor”) pursuant to
which the Vendor agreed to procure the sale of the sale interest (being
100% equity interest in CLTT, the “Sale Interest”) to the purchaser
and the sale of the production equipment, inventories and intellectual
property rights (“Sale Assets”) of CLTE to CLTT. The purchaser is a
company ultimately owned as to 70% by the Company and 30% by
the Vendor. The total consideration for the acquisition of Sale Interest
and Sale Assets is an amount up to RMB245,000,000.

During the year, approximately RMB37,230,000 and approximately
RMB36,339,000 have been paid for the purchase of the Sale
Interest and the Sale Assets respectively and consideration of
RMB91,000,000 have been paid to the Vendor in cash. On 7 June
2008, the date on which all the conditions to the Agreement have
been fulfilled and the acquisition of the Sale Interest and Sale
Assets has been completed (“Completion Date”), the Company
paid the final instalment of RMB91,000,000 to the Vendor as part
of the consideration pursuant to the Agreement. The remaining
balance of up to RMB116,770,000 shall be satisfied by the issue
of at least 30 million and no more than 60 million consideration
shares at HK$2.05 (the “Consideration Shares”) if the net profit after
taxation targets are met or exceeded for the financial years ending
31 December 2008, 2009 and 2010. On 7 September 2008, the
Company issued and allotted 30 million Consideration Shares to the
Vendor as part of the consideration of the Agreement. In addition,
the Vendor has confirmed that as part of his arrangements with the
original shareholders of CLTE (“Original Shareholders”), assuming the
Original Shareholders comply with the agreed terms pursuant to the
Agreement, the Vendor will be entitled to 0.5% of the Consideration.

As from the Completion Date, related senior management and
employees who have previously been responsible for managing
the manufacture and sale of rechargeable battery packs for mobile
phones under the “Chaolitong #8138 " brand in China joined CLTT.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition amounted to approximately
RMB22,849,000 which was attributable to its anticipated revenue
growth, profitability, future market development and the anticipated
future operating synergies from the combination. These benefits
were not recognised separately from goodwill as the future economic
benefits arising from them cannot be reliably measured.

R-BZELE+-A+—-H  ARFEEMBEL
F(TEF DRI —E= Tzl Bk EAR
BRELEHS R (ARB @R 2B
g [SHERER D TER - URHEEIBES
FHEERE  FERMHERE((HEEE]D T
AR - BEAR—REARRRES DRI
EER 70% K& 30% AR - WIEHEER MIHE
BERNBRESRRAARE 245,000,000 7T ©

FAN EREEHEREERHEEEED BIZMNL
AR ¥ 37,230,000 7T K& #) A R # 36,339,000 7T
FINE AR S MEH Z AR E AR 91,000,000
TL e RZZENFEXNALA (AipE2 S5
ERARBEHEER REEEENTK A
[FERAE]) » RARIENE A &ER DR
AR #91,000,000 TTiE At NEIBERD B o fid
HEZTTN\F —TTNFRZZT-ZTF+=
A=+—A I ERFEED B ER B m R F
HEZ - A=A AR 116,770,000 7T K #4258
AR B A% 2.05 4 7T 2178 4> 30,000,000 AR K T
#88 60,000,000 R RABRR A (TRERRS 1) K77 =
Xt e REZFZENFNALR @+ ARRIEITRE
% 30,000,000 IR B 1D T = 5 ERHZTIEH S
RE-WHN BEFEER  (EAEEBHIBET
FRARER ([JRARR ) ez —2B5 - BRERIRRR
BipRETHEGRK B SARESZREN
0.5% °

ek B R - AT E B K E IR R E X
[Cheolitong #8018 | R E R EBBE =
REBEHANERSRERERERE AR
HBEI -

W EIREL Z BN R ARK 22,849,000 7T
TR G fEE Z FRHK SRR - EAIeE
ARRTIZRELBRARRELESREME - A
RZERRMESE Z RREEN S TR SRt
8 I SR B D PR S M
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R=TBNF+=A=+-H

Acquisition of a subsidiary (continued)

30.

Ui — BB AR @

31.

CLTT contributed approximately RMB38,915,000 to the Group’s
profit for the period between the Completion Date and the year end
date. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the
year, the profit for the Group would have been approximately RMB
157,073,000 and revenue from continuing operations would have
been approximately RMB 1,325,823,000.

Non-cash Transactions

31.

RTER BEEF A B HRE - BAOBRBRARSE
B 2% A B 'R A A R #38915,000 7t A
EHREVET AEEGFELOAEARE
157,073,000 7T * HELEEBRAROBAR
£ 1,325,823,000 °

FRERH

32.

The consideration for acquisition of 70% interests in CLTT was
partly settled by the Company’s issue of 30,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 per share during the year, totaling approximately
HK$35,400,000.

Share-based payment transactions

32.

UG BERR H B RH: 70% tE2s o RES D R A R E R
FREITEHREEO0.178 7T .2 30,000,000 A% & iF
REE - & 2£#935,400,00078 7T °

UG HER TR

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 3 December 2006 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees.
Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The Scheme
was adopted for a period of 10 years and the Company by ordinary
resolution in general meeting or the board of directors of the Company
may at anytime terminate the Scheme without prejudice to the options
granted during the life of the Scheme and which remain unexpired
immediately prior to such termination.

At 31 December 2008, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme was 16,429,000 (2007: 23,830,000), representing 1.6%
(2007: 2.4%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that time. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The number of share issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates representing in
aggregate over 0.1% the Company’s share capital on the date of such
grant or with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved in advance by resolution of the Company’s shareholders
(voting by way of poll).

REREHEGEARA

SCUD Group Limited

ARR BB E ([ ZEt8l) AREBE-FT X
FH-_A=ZANIRENRREFRERREM]E
BYTS@IB 2 ORERMN - RIBZAE - ARARES
gARAEREE (BRARRLENBARE
) RHEAIRBARRRN < BhAE - ZaH8IIKR
MEBMRTEF - ARBEZAEIFHAMRLBR
NN RER R ERERBRE ST - A
RAIAFEERRAG L2 EBABRAARAES
R IMEAI R R R LT -

R-ZENE+-—A=1+—8  §@Zt2RE
BRI TE B AR 2 IR 1D 2B & 16,429,000
(ZZZ 4 : 23,830,000) ' HARATZEEE 2
TRD1.6% (ZTZTLF : 2.4%) - REXRQF]
BE R = HLAERT - AR EZTE TR B
B2 RDBRETERBARRTREETRMDZ
10% ° REA D EIIRE B LBER - BEREMR
FERIMAERA L 25 H kAl T 5 HE R ER
BTG TRITHRMEE T ERBARQRT
BEETROMN1I% - BR— 2SR —
EBUIEATERRFEESAZHEA LTS
3 AT AR H BB AR 2 B 31T RS T TR D B 8L
BEARRIREH BB AN0.1% A Esk B ER
5,000,000 & * MBELEUS AR R R R
BERIE GRREIEZER A RR) »
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32. URBABERZNARRS @

REVETARE D BRAER N - BEREAT

32. Share-based payment transactions (continued)

A consideration of HK$1 is payable on the grant of an option. Options

are vested in the following manner:

Period of exercise of the relevant percentage of option
TEBREEREE 2L 2 HIR

From the expiry of the first anniversary of the Listing
Date to the last date of the second anniversary
of the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

B E BRI B E i H B MBS
ZEEBEIE (BEEREMR)

From the expiry of the second anniversary of the Listing
Date to the last date of the third anniversary
of the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

B _E B ERREDm RS RRE Eh BB R =B
Z&EBEIE (REEERR)

From the expiry of the third anniversary of the Listing
Date to the last date of the fourth anniversary
of the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

B Em AR =AFEE LM A BRI RS
Z&EBHIE(BEEEMKR)

The exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company to be fixed at HK$2.02 per share.

ST -

Maximum percentage of options exercisable
A{TEEREZ2ESEIL

30% of the total number of options granted

ERHBREARZ 30%

30% of the total number of options granted

ERHBREARZ 30%

40% of the total number of options granted

ER N BREARZ 40%

TEEHARRESREE - MAEEL
TEERER2.02ETT

FrERRIEARE < FHEHIIMT

Details of specific category of options are as follows:

Fair value per option
Exercise period at grant date
1715 REEHBHSHBREN LD FE

No. of vested options granted
RENEBERESE

21 December 2007 to 20 December 2008 HK$0.37 7,149,000 (i.e. 30%)

—ZZ+FE+ A —+—H 0.37%7T (BN30%)
E-TT)\F+=-A=+AH

21 December 2008 to 20 December 2009 HK$0.47 7,149,000 (i.e. 30%)

—ZTE)\F+=-ZA=+—H 0.47 %L (BN30%)
EZETNF+ZA=FH

21 December 2009 to 20 December 2010 HK$0.57 9,532,000 (i.e. 40%)

—ZETAFE+_A=_+—8H 0.57%7T (BN40%)
E-T-TF+=-A=+H
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32. Share-bhased payment transactions (continued) 32. R ABERZARRZ @)
Movements of the share options held by directors and employees BEREENFAMTERREZZFHIT ¢

during the year were as follows:

Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
Number of Number of
options options
outstanding outstanding
e RATfE B ARATE
IBRESAE fEIREE B
Directors ==
1 January —H—H 15,300,000 15,300,000
Expired during the year RERZH (4,590,000) =
31 December +=—A=+—H 10,710,000 15,300,000
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
Number of Number of
options options
outstanding outstanding
e RATHE B ARATE
IBREE EREEE
Employees ==
1 January —H—H 8,530,000 9,670,000
Forfeited during the year FRME (360,000) (1,140,000)
Expired during the year REREH (2,451,000) =
31 December +=—A=+—8H 5,719,000 8,530,000
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Share-based payment transactions (continued)

32.

URGBAERZARRKRSZ @)

Options were granted on 21 December 2006 and the estimated fair
value of the options granted was approximately HK$11,713,000
(equivalent to RMB11,768,000). The Black-Scholes pricing model
has been used to estimate the fair value of the share options. The
following assumptions were used to calculate the fair value of the
share options:

Weighted average share price R (E
Exercise price 1IfEE
Expected life TERTEHR
Expected volatility TERTE IR
Expected dividend yield TEETAR B
Risk-free interest rate: N P
Option A AR A
Option B BB
Option C BEAREEC

The fair value of the share options granted was HK$0.3716 per
share. Where relevant, the expected life used in the model has been
adjusted based on management’s best estimate for the effects of non-
transferability, restrictions to exercise (including the probability of
meeting market conditions attached to the options), and behavioural
considerations. Expected volatility is based on the current average
annualised standard deviations of the continuously compounded
rates of return on the share prices of other comparable with similar
business operations listed in the Stock Exchange.

The Group recognised a total expense of RMB2,938,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2008 (2007: RMB5,812,000) in relation to
share options granted by the Group.

BREESR-_ZTAF+-_A=+—HBRL m”
R REIRAE 2 (et A FER A11,713,000% 7T
(FBER AR 11,768,0007T) ° b AF(EThiEA
N —HRTHEEERNGEE - L TMREAR
STEBREATE

21 December 2006
“EEXRE+=A=+—H

HK$2.88 /87T
HK$2.02 87T
1.5-3.5 years 5
38.15%

2.54%

3.58%
3.61%
3.69%

R HERE ATER0.3716 BT « MHERAE -
ZRAERNBA FHEREEEERTAE
EIE - TERS (RREBRENTTEMRZA
MEEN) RITREBERNEEFLMREMGFT
T IARE o REHRBTIRBRE R LT 2 88
DB B & L BB N 2 FEEAFIK
BEREMZFOFEREZRETF -

AEERBE_ZETN\F+_A=+—HILF
ERAARMBEHERERABEAEARE
2,938,0007L( —ZEZt4: AR¥5,812,0005T) °
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33. Related party transactions 33. EBEALRS
a)  The name of and the relationship with related companies are as a) AREEAFZENEEERBERINT
follows:
Name Relationship
=18 &
Fang Jin Director
Yk =
Lin Chao Director
MiEE =
Guo Quan Zeng Director
20 R 3 =
Scud Electronics A wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by the Company with
REEEF Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Lin Chao being common directors
A TERMBEERLRAESNAARHEEZEMNB AR
Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. A company with Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Lin Chao and
(“Scud Stock™) Mr. Guo Quan Zeng being common directors and shareholders
REREBRKROERAR] FREE  MBEERDBRIGEERSHAESERRENAF
(THRERRRR M 1)
Chaolitong Electronic Company Limited Mr. Ma Jie and Mr. Zheng Wei are directors and shareholders of both
(“Chaoclitong Electronic”) Chaolitong Electronic and Chaolitong Technology Company Limited
BIBETHARAR EREERBEEERBENAEFERA A MENBERERARNES
([EBHEETF]) &S
Chaolitong Technology Company Limited A 70% owned subsidiary indirectly held by the Company with
(“Chaolitong Technology”) Mr. Ma Jie and Mr. Zheng Wei being directors of both Chaolitong Electronic
B BEHE AR AR and Chaolitong Technology
(TEB A @RHR]) BARLERBELRERBNABETRENBEZORRAEEN AR BHERES
70% HIHt @A 7
b)  Transactions with related companies during the year b) WERBEHRREMBOBEENFTANEH
not disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are ERARR ST ¢

summarised as follows:

Group

AEEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREET T

Purchases of raw materials from: B RA#

— Fujian Youtong Co., Ltd. —EERBEFERAR
(“Fujian Youtong”) (Note i) ([tegiml) (faEi) - 14,370
Purchases of moulds from: BEEA :
— Fujian Youtong (Note i) — R (M) - 133
Rental expenses paid to: MY
— Scud Stock (Note ii) — RERRAR (A5 i) 4,078 2,870
— Chaolitong Electronic R ET
(Note iii) (Hiz#iii) 2,100 -
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33. Related

party transactions (continued)

3. BEAEALETRZ @

The above transactions were made at prices and terms as

agreed between the parties in the normal course of business.

Notes:

i)

ii)

The Company has disclosed in its prospectus dated 11
December 2006 that Scud Electronics had entered into a
purchase agreement with Fujian Youtong on 1 August 2006,
pursuant to which Scud Electronics had agreed to source raw
materials and plastic moulds from Fujian Youtong for the period
from 1 August 2006 till 1 August 2009.

The purchases of raw materials and moulds from Fujian
Youtong constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The annual caps
with respect to the purchases for the years ended/ending 31
December 2006, 2007 and 2008 have been determined to
be RMB16,500,000, RMB17,500,000 and RMB22,100,000,
respectively.

Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Lin Chao are executive directors of the
Company who were also directors of Fujian Youtong in previous
years. On 28 October 2007, Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Lin Chao
ceased to act as directors of Fujian Youtong. As such the
purchase of raw materials and moulds from Fujian Youtong
ceased to be connected transactions as of 28 October 2007
under the relevant accounting standards.

The Company has disclosed in its prospectus dated 11
December 2006 that Scud Electronics had entered into a
lease agreement with Scud Stock on 20 June 2004, pursuant
to which Scud Electronics had agreed to lease from Scud
Stock certain factory premises in Fuzhou, Fujian Province, the
PRC, for the Group’s production use for a term of three years
commencing 1 July 2004 and ending on 30 June 2007 (the
“Lease Agreement”). The Lease Agreement was later extended
to 30 June 2024.

The annual rental payable under the Lease Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has set its initial
annual caps for each of the three years ending 31 December
2008 to be RMB2,700,000 each.

On 15 November 2007, Scud Electronics entered into a new
lease agreement for leasing another premises in Fuzhou,
Fujian Province, the PRC, from Scud Stock for the Group’s
administrative use (the “New Lease Agreement”).

The annual caps have been revised following the signing of the
New Lease Agreement. The new annual caps for the aggregate
rental payable by Scud Electronics to Scud Stock under all
the leases for the years ended/ending 31 December 2007,
2008 and 2009 have been determined to be RMB3,000,000,
RMB4,100,000 and RMB4,100,000, respectively. The rent
payable under the Lease Agreement and the New Lease
Agreement were determined after arms’ length negotiations
between Scud Electronics and Scud Stock with reference to the
prevailing market rental for the comparable premises.

The rent payable under the Lease Agreement and the
New Lease Agreement were determined after arms’ length
negotiations between Scud Electronics and Scud Stock with
reference to the prevailing market rental for the comparable
premises.

B 5T —REB BT REME T
TERO(ERR S RBGETT -

i) AARERASMA-_TTARNF+—A+—
BB SEPHRE  REREFERS
TTNE\A— BEBRAERI Y — IR
B Bt REREFEREN-Z
ERENA—BE_ZTNAF/\A—HIt
HEBRERBERERN R EBER -

A48 22 A i I B IR A 1 AR BB K £
AR LAAERENFSHBER S - AR
BE_ZTR . —ZTZHR_TT)\F
ToA=t—RUFENBESF LRE
2 Bl E 73 A K # 16,500,000 7T » AKHS
17,500,000 7¢ &2 A R 22,100,000 7T

TEEERMBEERAAB ZHNITE
= DAIFETSRERBCES - N=
ZZEEFA-+N\A - HREERME
TEETHAREBZES - At RIE
BEEFEN  R-TTLFFA—FN\
B MEZRBRERMHREATER
RERS °

ii) AATERBHAE-_ZEE+_A+—
BEOBBRERFHEE  RERSTER=
TTFEN A=+ B ERERERRMD LA
EipE - BLERERETFERZRRERR
IRA TSR R EEEEEMNENE T IRY
¥EASELEERSE  H-TTNELA
—BHRE-_ZTTLFA=THILAH=
F((HERR] - HERSIEBRTRE—
T_OFEASA=FH-

HEHBZATHNEFRNESEK LD
FRAFIAABERNFERER S - AR
AEREBE_TENF+_A=1—
BIE=Ea0NNLEFLR/ARE
2,700,0007T °

R-ZZLE+—A+AR  RERETF
RIS R - MRERBHAER D
BItEE A RN M B ) S AR R TR
®([FEEH=E]) -

RETLHEE WAL EREF LERIE
HEFT - HE—TZ+  —ET\RK—
ZENF+_A=+—HILFE RE
FEHEE  RERESFEMRERKRN
BESHHEFELREDHIESARE
3,000,0007T * AE#4,100,0007T %A E
# 4,100,000 7T - & 157 Mo i B 4
BN ENE S TIRERE FERERR
1 2 ISR TFERR2RABYDENER
MEREmEE

BE W= EERZEE THENES
THRERBR SR ERRAL 1) < ML A TR
BR2RABYENEFHEESMER
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33. Related party transactions (continued)

3. AEEAETRZ @

c)

SCUD Group Limited

iii)

On 17 January 2008, Chaolitong Electronic and Chaolitong
Technology entered into a lease agreement (“CLT Lease
Agreement”) whereby Chaolitong Technology will lease the
factory and dormitory premises from Chaolitong Electronic in
Shenzhen. The Vendor is a connected person of the Company
by way of its 30% interest in the Purchaser. As of 2 June
2008 whereby the Company receives all relevant approvals
required from Chinese regulators in relation to the acquisition
of Chaolitong Technology, Chaolitong Technology became an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
the CLT Lease Agreement therefore constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company.

The annual caps with respect to the rental payable by Chaolitong
Technology for the years ended/ending 31 December 2008,
2009 and 2010 have been determined to be RMB3,600,000 per
annum.

Further details of the CLT Lease Agreement are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 17 January 2008.

The directors of the Company have confirmed that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the continuing
connected transactions stated in Notes i), i) and iii) above.

Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note
8, is as follows:

iii)

iv)

R_FZN\F—A+LR  BABETR
HB BRI S — R E e (B A
Eipal) - Eit - BOBBEEEEN
BEFRANZ IRRESNE - B8
BEGERE T 30% 2 i AR AR 2
BAL - R=FTRNFANAZH  ARF
e RS E = R pt A R KRB 1 AR
SBEERMAFELAE  BIENERK AR
RAIMZIERAMB AR MBBEE
A MBRAR R EEERS

BABNMBNEBE—ZTT/\F —TTAH
FER-ZB-TE+- A=+—HIEREF
ERNESNFE LREREERTFA
¥ 3,600,000 7T °

BHBBEBHOLMHERIINAAR
R=BBN\F—ATLATEHAM -

AAREEHER  NATDET EXHE
i) i) Beiif) P _E TR RIS 1A R B RIRAR
BER SR EMRTE °

c) FREBALHME (BREMOKFESAMNE
HEXNARREEHME) AT

Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENE —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Salaries, bonus, allowance e 8B - ERL
and other benefits R B A& A 1,001 882
Retirement benefits scheme RIRREFIET 2R
contributions 16 16
Equity-settled share-based AR GEE 2 AR B
payments B Sr AN TN 1,915 3,732
2,932 4,630

REREHEGEARA
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34. Commitments 34. &E
a)  Capital commitments a) B AR EYE
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENE —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARMET T

Contracted but not accounted ERMEEDE

for, in respect of acquisition B E I
of property, plant #IBR AR
and equipment 137,915 139,773
b)  Operating lease commitments b)  ARETEAVEIE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding REZER  AEBERBESAREELEH
minimum commitments under non-cancellable operating B i RAETF R 8 R B AR R A H LA T 2R
leases in respect of land and buildings which fall due as BEIE
follows:
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—ZETN\F ZETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Within one year —FR 7,040 3,235
In the second and MERF (BEMF
fifth years inclusive BIEER) 7,951 6,940

14,991 10,175
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35. Subsidiaries

35. B

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company at the balance sheet date
are as follows. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

REERARRRIMBRARFENT - RIFRTTH
B - FERROER AT EK

stated:
Group’s
Place of Issued and effective
incorporation/ paid-up ownership
establishment share/ interest
and registered AEEEN
operation capital BERER Principal
Name of company AR LR BRTRES/ 2008 2007 activities
AR EH LEhY BRRA “EEN\E C—ITTHF  FEEH
Great Speed Enterprises British Virgin US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited Islands 50,000 7T BREER
TAGEBRAR REBRUEE
Scud Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$1 100%* 100%*  Provision for
Company Limited 0 18T corporate
RERSE(EB)ERAA management
services
REENAEERRS
Keen Power Holdings Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%* 100%*  Investment holding
Limited e 1,000%7T REER
HEEEERAR
Joint Smart Holdings Hong Kong HK$10,000 70%* 70%*  Investment holding
Limited &t 10,000787C BREAER
BEEEARAR
Scud Electronics PRC US$3,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. H 3,000,000 7T and sale of
REBRET (ORI BRAA rechargeable
(Note i) battery packs,
(Bizti) chargers and

* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises Limited
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related accessories

for mobile phones,

notebook

computers, digital

cameras and other

electrical

appliances
SERHERR

REEEE -

ZXAEM - 2O5AK

REMETERD

ZRREEHA

rERIEMARERS

* BRACEERAREERS G #R
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35. Subsidiaries (continued)

35. ftB A @

Place of

incorporation/

establishment

and

operation
Name of company MR
AR EB TEE

Issued and
paid-up

share/
registered
capital
BRTRER/
BRRA

2008
—EENF

Group's
effective
ownership
interest
AEEEN
ERER
2007
ZZTtF

Principal
activities
TEER

Scud (Fujian) Electronics PRC
Co., Ltd. H

(RER(BR)EFARAR)

(Note i)

(Biatii)

Scud (Fujian) Battery PRC
Co., Ltd. H

(RER(BR)ENBRAR)

(Note iii)

(Hitii)

Scud (Fujian) New Energy PRC
Technology Co., Ltd. H

(FRERR (BR) FTe BB IRAR])

(Note iv)

(Biztiv)

US$20,000,000
20,000,000 7T

US$30,000,000
30,000,000 7T

US$750,000
750,000%7T

” Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings Limited

100%*

100%*

100%* 100%*

100%* 100%*

Manufacturing
and sale of
rechargeable
battery packs,
chargers and
related accessories
for mobile phones,
notebook
computers, digital
cameras and other
electrical
appliances

SUE RIS IER
RBBEE - Z4
B - SR REMD
ETERN_KAREE
HiBRE

Manufacturing
and sale of
rechargeable
battery packs,
chargers and
related accessories
for mobile phones,
notebook
computers, digital
cameras and other
electrical
appliances

SUE RS ERARGE
B ERAEK
YIS RAMET
EGN-RRES
HiBRE %

Not yet
commenced
business

HARMEE

¢ BB REERARRES A ER
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35. Subsidiaries (continuea) 35. B A=
Group's
Place of Issued and effective
incorporation/ paid-up ownership
establishment share/ interest
and registered rEEEXM
operation capital BEkR Principal
Name of company MR BRITRES 2008 2007 activities
ATERE TEMY BRRA “ZEN\F Tt FEER
Great Power Enterprises Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%* N/A~ Not yet
Limited 0 1,000/87T commenced
(AERERRAR) business
RS
Chaolitong Technology PRC RMB37,000,000 70%A N/A Manufacturing
Company Limited i 37,000,000 AR # and sale of
(R h@sHRERAR) rechargeable
(Note v) battery packs,
(Hiitv) chargers and
related accessories
for mobile phones,
notebook
computers, digital
cameras and other
electrical
appliances
SERHERRRBD
B ERAEK
HIERREMET
ERN-RAREE
il RERK
Hth AR
@ Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises Limited * BREACEERA AEES R
4 Interest indirectly held through Joint Smart Holdings Limited o BREEEEARA MG AR
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35. Subsidiaries (continued)

35. ftB A @

36.

Notes:

i

ii)

iii)

iv)

V)

Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years commencing 26
October 2006.

Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years commencing 31
October 1997.

Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years commencing 6
December 2005.

Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years commencing 30
April 2007.

Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 10 years commencing 2
June 2008.

Financial instruments by category

wat

) S EEBELE -
HR+EF -

i SEEELE
R -

i) ANEEESE -

FHAFAE O

v)  NEEELE -

ht%F-

v)  INEEEDE

o

—EERFETA-TRBEFE
C—ANEETA=T—BEHR
“ETRF+ZARNARE RS
T HFEN A=t AEH AL

“ETN\FARAZBR AT

36. RERE T 2EMTA

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

REER - KBRS T AAREELT

Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
Loans and receivables Loans and receivables
B R EWRIE Bk IR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Financial assets SREE
Due from a related party FEU A BAiE A T 518 938 1,126
Trade and notes receivables R E 55878 & e U R i 318,781 191,499
Prepaid lease payments B HRERIE 12,243 12,501
Financial assets included in TERFOE -« e REHAD
prepayments, deposits and RGBT R IR
other receivables NEmEE 4,767 26,093
Pledged bank deposits BEEIFRITIER 105,942 29,375
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRIRS 351,176 468,483
793,847 729,077
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36. Financial instruments by category (continued)

36. REFE D 2EBMIAw

2008

—EENE

Financial liahilities at
amortised costs

2007

BT
Financial liabilities at
amortised costs

R ARAIRE RSP AN AR EY
=L cRIBE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Financial liabilities SRaE
Due to a related party BB REEANTRIR 3,877 =
Trade and notes payables B E 5708 R IEN RIE 257,642 133,408
Financial liabilities included in EMpERE - TERETER
other payables, receipts in FERTE R FTEIEH
advance and accrued charges SRAE 33,762 14,033
Bank loans RITE 1,797 14,406
303,078 161,847

SCUD Group Limited REBREBER QA
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37. Financial risk and capital management and
estimation of fair values

3. BEBEERNEERMTA
Y&

a)

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
which include market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Details of the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out

below. The directors manage and monitor these exposures to

ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements
in foreign currency exchange rates which will affect the
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. Although
the Group has certain bank balances and bank loans
denominated in United States dollars, Japanese
Yen and Hong Kong dollars, the proportion of these
foreign currency balances to the Group’s total assets is
insignificant. Furthermore, the Group carries out majority
of its transactions in Chinese Renminbi. Accordingly, in
the opinion of the directors, the Group is not exposed to
any significant foreign currency risk.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks.

a)

AT R I
AEENESEAX TRV BRREED
SRk (BREINERE - M= ER R ERR
) EERR R ERR - BREIREZSE
RBREBRAFBTRN T - EFEER
EEZTRAR  UREREELAFRT A
BHeEE EEE ©

0 SMNEmEEREFE

SNE BRI SNE TE R BB B A
BOHBERERERSRENRR o
BEASEEAETIUAET  BER
BT RBMMRITERLERRTE
;o R - ZFINENEREAREE
EEELLPILTERK © 1eIh - AEE
NAREETERSERZS - Bt
EERR/AKEL EAZEMERDN
SNEE R

AEBEHINERR K EERFE
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37. Financial risk and capital management and
estimation of fair values (continuea)

3. BEBEERNEERMTA

EE @

a)

SCUD Group Limited

Financial risk management (Continued)

i)

Interest rate risk management

Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly pledged
bank deposits and bank balances which are all short-
term in nature and carry fixed interest rates. Interest-
bearing financial liabilities are mainly bank loans with
fixed interest rates; therefore, the Group is not exposed
to significant fair value interest rate risk due to the short
maturity of the items. The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy and will consider enter
into interest rate hedging should the need arise.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
assuming that a change in interest rates had occurred

at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rates for financial instruments in
existence at that date. A 1% increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the
year ended 31 December 2008 and the accumulated
profits as of 31 December 2008 would decrease/
increase by RMB4,236,154 (2007: decrease/increase
by RMB4,959,785). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate
bank borrowings.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has not changed
significantly from the prior year.

REREHEGEARA

a)

MR ERE (F)

ii)

FIF R &
MEeMBEEIEREHMENER
RIRITERRIRITAEELR - WIREEF
T B - MEMBABEIERKEE
MG BEERITER - Bt - AEE
RETEENDHARE - Sl ™A
AZEBANAFENERRR - NEE
R WA R EP R M
REBEE LMK -

FIEGHZE ST

AT BEESTERRNEEHE
REEREEMER - WE AR
R B FTE R 5 T A 2 K&
B - RAEREEATIENRREBE
MERIRE L 1% 32 N Spl DA E
BEHNRA SR EE 2 5T -

R FI R 0,5 > 1% M AT H b
BB AEEHE-_TT/N\F
T BA=1+—BLLEEHHEMNRER
—EENFE+ZA=1T—HHRE
w1 AR 4,236,154
T(ZETEF G AR
4,959,7857T) ° WX ERAAREE
FERITERHFIRRR -

AREEBEF R GURE A F AL R
BEAEE -
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37. Financial risk and capital management and
estimation of fair values (continuea)

3. BEBEERNEERMTA

EE @

a)

Financial risk management (Continued)

fii)

iv)

Price risks management
In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not have
significant exposure to price risks.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk primarily
relates to the Group’s bank balances and cash, trade
and notes receivables, and other receivables. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at
end of the financial year in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the balance sheet. In order to
minimise the risk, management of the Group closely
monitors overdue debts. The recoverable amount of
each individual debt is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adequate allowance for doubtful debts has
been made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that credit risk
associated with the Group’s trade and notes receivables,
and other receivables is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-rating.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in the PRC.
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37. Financial risk and capital management and
estimation of fair values (continuea)

37. AR RERAEER ML
FE @

a)

SCUD Group Limited

Financial risk management (Continued)

v)  Liquidity risk management

The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Group’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles
of financial assets and liabilities.

Management of capital

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years
ended 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. The Group’s
policy is to maintain the gearing ratio below 50%. Net debt
includes interest-bearing bank borrowings, less cash and
cash equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company and the minority interests. The gearing
ratios as at the balance sheet dates were as follows:
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37. Financial risk and capital management and
estimation of fair values (continuea)

37.
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b)

Management of capital (Continued)

b) EBXNEE(E)

Group

rEE
2008 2007
—BENFE —ETLE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETIT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings [t B8R1TE 7,797 14,406
Less: Cash and cash equivalents &l : & NMIREZEY (351,176) (468,483)
Net debt FEE (343,379) (454,077)

Equity attributable to equity RARRAFEE A

holders of the Company FEMRARAR 1,137,844 972,289
Minority interests DERR R RS 82,838 7
Total capital FER =N 1,220,682 972,296
Capital and net debt BEARFEE 877,303 518,219
Gearing ratio BEAMELE N/A T8 N/A 736

Estimation of fair values

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a
maturity of less than one year are assumed to approximate their
fair values.

The fair value of balances with related parties has not been
determined as the timing of the expected cash flows of these
balances cannot be reasonably determined because of the
relationship.
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Recent accounting and financial reporting

pronouncements

EMBmEDE

The Group has not adopted earlier or applied the following new
and revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of these standards, amendments

R
BRI TR ER

or interpretations will have no material impact on the results and

financial position of the Group.

IAS 1 (Revised)
BIFR &5 T2ERIEE 1 5% (BB{EET)
IAS 23 (Revised)

BIPR 2 E RIS 23 57 (K&1EE])
IAS 27 (Revised)

BIRR 25T 2RI 27 5% (&&1EET])

IAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)
BB e ERFE 3255 5 157 (IBR]A)

IAS 39 (Amendment)
BIRR 2 ET RIS 3957 (B5] )
IFRS 1 & IAS 27 (Amendments)
R B i S 22 A3 155 2

e RIZE 27 SR (85T A)
IFRS 2 (Amendment)
BFR B 7 3 S 22 A 56 2 5% (18R] A)

IFRS 3 (Revised)
BURR B S Hh & 2E RN 56 357 (48 1E5])

IFRS 8

R R 5 795 ¥ 5 R R 26 B 5%

IFRIC 13

BRI HREREZREE 135
IFRIC 15

BRI REREZ R EF 155
IFRIC 16
ERMHEREREZEEFE 165
IFRIC 17

BRI REREZR SR 17H
IFRIC 18

BRU B HRERERREF 185

REREHEGEARA

SCUD Group Limited

Presentation of Financial Statements

MR Z 27

Borrowing Costs

fEERA

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
4rRE KB BT HRE

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising
on Liquidation

Ao TARERREENTENEET
Eligible Hedged ltems
& BRENRIEE BERT

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate
HITB AR - HREGI BB E AT ZRERAK

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
5B G ROE S
Business Combinations

EBast

Operating Segments
BESED

Customer Loyalty Programmes

RPERFESE

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

A R h ok

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
TEINETS IR B F KB
Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners

AEAEEDEIFRSEE

Transfer of Assets from Customers

BREEFNEE

E;@ o

WE

AN EER T 5 S BB W ARERZ #7] K
ERTER - BRI AR RE - ARBERRY - &
ERTARREBHASE 2 KB KB

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after
BT HEBENETHREN

1

1
—ZF

—==

— =3

1

—=<=

1
—EF

1
—ZF

— ==

RS

1

—ZF

— ==

1
—ZF

1

—ZF

— ==

— =3

January 2009
hE—HA—H
January 2009
hFE—A—H

1 July 2009
hE+EA—H

January 2009
hE—HA—H

1 July 2009
hE+EA—H

January 2009
hE—H—H

January 2009
hFE—A—H

1 July 2009
hE+EA—H

January 2009
NE—H—H

1 July 2008
NEFEEH—HB
January 2009
hE—H—H
October 2008
NEFE+HA—H

1 July 2009
NFELA—H

1 July 2009
NEELA—H
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38. Recent accounting and financial reporting 38. AHASFT R ERE NS @
pronouncements (continued)
Apart from the above, International Accounting Standards Board B EFESN B e ERZE e RERFRNRE
has issued “Improvements to IFRSs” during the year, which set out 1 BIBR B TS R 5 2 Rl 2 B - B AR EYI 2 IR BT
amendments to a number of IFRSs. Except for the amendment to BTSSR E R 2 (85T - BB R EERIZES
IFRS 5 which is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on N _TEENF+ A —HEABRIBZ FERSE
or after 1 July 2009, these amendments are effective for annual HARI I - s E B IR 2 NE—F—H
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. SABFIIR 2 FE RS AR AR o

39. Ultimate controlling party 39. RAEFAL
At 31 December 2008, the directors consider the ultimate controlling RZZEENF+_A=1+—"H EFRERKE
party to be Mr. Fang Jin. FIALABHSITE -

40. Approval of the consolidated financial 40. BBREMKERRE
statements
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised FEECRN _ETNF=-A - THHBRBMKE
for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2009. BREEPBHRE -




Five-year Financial Summary

AT RE

The following consolidated financial information is extracted from THESGETBEREREAER 2R E T BHRE %5
the consolidated financial statements of the Group, prepared under ISR TIAR R BB B SR A A Rl R B
International Financial Reporting Standards:
Year ended 31st December,
BEt-A=1t—-ALEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENE ZETF ZETRF —ETHF —ETMF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT AREFT ARBFT ARBFT
RESULTS 4
Turnover L] 1,252,693 960,921 936,305 706,992 515,839
Profit before taxation Rt A 142,357 15,946 174,902 111,664 69,979
Taxation T (72) (429) (14,711) (8,344) (4,761)
Profit for the year REE A 142,285 15,517 160,191 103,320 65,218
Attributable to: AT FEL -
Equity holders of the Company RARERIFEA 131,954 15,513 160,191 86,336 42392
Minority interests LY RS 10,331 4 = 16,984 22,826
142,285 15,517 160,191 103,320 65,218
As at 31st December,
R+=A=+—H
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENFE ZRTLF ZREREF —ZTREF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETIT ARETFT AREFT ARETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEE 1,537,865 1,153,070 1,156,839 352,093 238,440
Total liabilities HWaE (317,183) (180,774) (321,116) (149,889) (139,962)
1,220,682 972,296 835,723 202,204 98,478
Equity attributable to: IATNIB B e
Equity holders of the Company RARERIFEA 1,137,844 972,289 835,723 202,204 64,011
Minority interests DY RS 82,838 7 = = 34,467
1,220,682 972,296 835,723 202,204 98,478

140 SCUD Group Limited REREBEFR AR




SCUD Industrial Park

Mawei Economic and Technology
Development Zone

Fuzhou, Fujian

China 350015

Suite 5505, 55/F., Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong

www.scudcn.com

SCUD Group Limited

REREEBR AT

FREIRE
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RERTXE

4w : 350015

BB EIE18%
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Tel EFE : (86) 591-87308888
Fax & : (86) 591-87307773

Tel B3EF : (852) 28057888
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